O Principal’

12 October 2020
Re: Invitation to the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of Samui Buri Property Fund (SBPF)
To: Unitholders of Samui Buri Property Fund (SBPF)

Enclosures: 1. Copy of the minutes of the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of Samui Buri
Property Fund (SBPF)

Copy of the Fund’s financial statement for the fiscal year ending on 30 June 2020
Instructions on registration, attendance and proxy

Proxy form

Map of the meeting venue

2 S

Prepaid return envelope

Article 70 of the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. 35/2562 (2019) Re:
Property Fund Management dated 25 April 2019 requires the management company to arrange for the holding
of an annual general meeting of unitholders within 4 months from the end of each accounting year of the

property fund.

Therefore, Principal Asset Management Company Limited (“Management Company”) as the
management company of Samui Buri Property Fund or “SBPF” in short (“Fund”) would like to notify the date
of the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of the Property Fund to be 28 October 2020 at 9.30 AM at
Eastin Grand Hotel Sathorn Bangkok, Surasak 1 Ballroom, 11" Floor, 33/1 South Sathorn Road, Yannawa
Sub-district, Sathorn District, Bangkok 10120 in order to consider several matters in accordance with the

following detailed meeting agenda:

Agenda 1: Matters to be informed by the chairman to the Meeting (For Acknowledgement)

The delivery of letter of request for resolutions of unitholders and the resolution results

As the Management Company has sent the letter No. PFRD 012/2563 RE: Request for
Resolution of Unitholders of Samui Buri Property Fund (SBPF) dated 19 June 2020 (“Letter of Request for
Resolution”), to the Unitholders of the Fund to request the Unitholders to pass the resolution in regard to the
proposal of Samui Buri Beach Resort Company Limited (“Lessee”) to consider approving or disapproving the
exemption of rental payment as proposed by the Lessee or as the Management Company deemed appropriate.

The Management Company requested the Unitholders to cast their votes and return the voting form to the
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Management Company by 20 July 2020. The Unitholders returned the voting form to the Management Company
in the total number of 45 persons, holding altogether 37,845,220 units which is equivalent to 45.71 percent of

the Fund’s total units sold. (82,800,000 units). In this regard, the Unitholders have resolved as follows:

Agenda 1 : To consider approving or disapproving the exemption of rental payment as

proposed by the Lessee (For Approval)

The Unitholders resolved to disapprove the exemption of rental payment as

proposed by the Lessee, with the number of votes as follow:

Approve 6,301,700 units or equivalentto 21.59 percent*
Disapprove 22,073,700 units or equivalentto 75.64 percent*
Abstain 807,300 units or equivalent to 2.77 percent”
Void Ballot 0 wunits or equivalent to 0 percent*

*Percentage of the total number of units of the Unitholders responding and
having the right to cast their votes is 29,182,700 units. In this Agenda, the Unitholders who have the conflict of
interest which have no right of voting are Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd. holding 6,285,500 units and Miss
Pornpat Praprutchob holding 2,377,020 units.

Agenda 2 : To consider approving or disapproving the exemption of rental payment as

the Management Company deemed appropriate (For Approval)

The Unitholders resolved to disapprove the exemption of rental payment as

the Management Company deemed appropriate, with the number of votes as follow:

Approve 6,636,600 units or equivalentto 22.74 percent*
Disapprove 21,758,800 wunits or equivalentto 74.56 percent*
Abstain 777,300 units or equivalent to 2.66 percent*
Void Ballot 10,000 wunits or equivalent to 0.04 percent*

*Percentage of the total number of units of the Unitholders responding and
having the right to cast their votes is 29,182,700 units. In this Agenda, the Unitholders who have the conflict of
interest which have no right of voting are Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd. holding 6,285,500 units and Miss
Pornpat Praprutchob holding 2,377,020 units.

Since the Unitholders have resolved to disapprove the exemption of the rental payment as

proposed by the Lessee and as the Management Company deemed appropriate, the Management Company
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considered that it is appropriate to propose the future management of the Fund to the Meeting of Unitholders

as per details specified in Agenda 3.

Agenda 2: To certify the minutes of the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of the Fund

(For Consideration)

As the Management Company arranged for the holding of the 2019 Annual General Meeting
of Unitholders of Fund on 25 October 2019, the Management Company has prepared and disclosed the minutes
of the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of the Fund as required by law. Therefore, the Management
Company considered that it is appropriate to propose that the Meeting of Unitholders consider certifying the

minutes of the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of the Fund.

Management Company’s opinion

The Management Company has deemed it appropriate to propose to the Unitholders to
consider and certify the minutes of the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of the Fund, held on 25

October 2019, as proposed since the record of the said minutes has been correctly prepared.

Resolution

This agenda item requires a resolution passed by a majority of votes out of the total number

of investment units held by the Unitholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote.

There are no Unitholders with special interest on this agenda.

Agenda 3: To acknowledge the report on the Fund’s operation and future management of the Fund

(For Acknowledgement)

31 Conditions of Properties

From the annual property inspection on 22 July 2020, the hotel has closed down its business
since April 2020 up until present (as of 23 September 2020), the properties are overall in a normal condition

and the Lessee has arranged for security guard(s) to look after the properties as appropriate.

Moreover, the Lessee has improved the properties in accordance with the conditions of the

Property Lease Agreement dated 26 July 2018. The Management Company has entered and conducted a
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preliminary inspection on the improvement works and considered that the Lessee has proceeded pursuant to
the asset improvement plan. Besides, the Lessee has conducted property improvement in addition to the plan
and budget specified in the annexures to the Property Lease Agreement. That was because there were
additional damages in the actual conditions of the properties than those in the past assessment result. The
Management Company is in the process of examining the amount of work and the value of the asset

improvement plan if they are in accordance with the agreed plan.
3.2 Tourism and hotel market conditions in Samui Island and future tendency

Due to the 2019 coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak in China since late 2019 which has rapidly
spread to several countries around the world, several countries including Thailand have implemented strict
measures to prevent the spreading. State of emergency was declared on 25 March 2020 and has been in
effect from 26 March 2020 onwards. Subsequently, on 26 May 2020, the declaration of state of emergency
was expended for another time until 30 June 2020. Under such declaration of state of emergency, the
Government has issued several measures including travel restrictions and closure of businesses and activities

that pose a risk of spreading the disease.

Moreover, on 7 April 2020, the Provincial Governor of Surat Thani Province issued the Order
of Surat Thani Province No. 2193/2563 (2020) RE: Urgent Measures to Prevent the Spreading of 2019
Coronavirus (COVID-19) (No. 9) requiring hotels and places for alike residential services, except for the hotels
that are used by the Government as field hospitals or for any other governmental benefits, to close down from
8 April 2020 to 30 April 2020 which was extended to 31 May 2020 following the extension of the state of

emergency declaration.

Although the Provincial Governor of Surat Thani Province issued the Order of Surat Thani
Province No. 2727/2563 (2020) RE: Urgent Measures to Prevent the Spreading of 2019 Coronavirus (COVID-
19) (No. 15) dated 2 May 2020 allowing hotels to open only hotel room and restaurant or dining room services
and requiring them to strictly comply with the conditions for prevention of the spread from 3 May 2020 onwards
until there is any change, the Civil Aviation Authority of Thailand issued a notification to extend the period
during which international flights with passengers were temporarily prohibited from coming into Thailand from

1 May 2020 up until 30 June 2020.

Although Bangkok Airways which was the main airline for travelling to and from Samui has
resumed its services since 15 May 2020, it would not cause any positive effect on the tourism industry in Samui

anytime soon.
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3.2.1 Conditions of tourism and hotel industry

Monthly Domestic Flight at Samui Intl. Airport
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According to the information from the Tourism Authority of Thailand’, it was found that there
were 199 flights as per the monthly flight plan of Samui International Airport in August 2020, which decreased
from 205 flights in July 2020, whereby cargo flights were included in these figures. Based on such information,
it was found that the number of flights decreased from 958 and 1,039 flights during the same month in 2019
and 2018 causing the decrease in the number of passenger seats from 103,986 and 117,144 seats in August

2019 and 2018 to only 22,940 seats in August 2020.
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With respect to the proportion of tourists staying in hotels during 2015 — 2019, most of the
tourists staying in hotels of approximately 97 percent were foreign tourists. Therefore, hotel business in Samui
Island having foreign tourists as guests would suffer direct impacts from the outbreak of the disease, travel
bans including the disease outbreak situation in, and impacts on the economies of, the countries of origin such

as China and European countries.
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The number of tourists staying in hotels that was shown as zero in the above diagram was
caused by the measure to close hotels in Surat Thani Province as mentioned above. The number of tourists
staying in hotels in August 2020 decreased from an average of 250,000 tourists in the same month of 2019
and 2018 to only 43,813 tourists. The increase in the number of tourists staying in hotels in July 2020 resulted
from the Government’s campaign(s) and measures to promote Thai people’s travelling and tourism. Although
the relevant authorities have relaxed several measures including allowing hotels to resume their services, the
extension of the temporary ban on international flights to Thailand still cause negative impacts on the tourism

industry.
3.2.2  Tendency in 2020 and 2021

With respect to the tourism industry in Samui Island, the main businesses which are
connected to tourism being hotels, restaurants, tour services and others rely mainly on foreign tourists.
Therefore, in considering the tendency of the hotel business on Samui Island, the key factors are mainly the

impacts of the outbreak of the disease on the economies and the recovery of foreign markets.

Although during the beginning of the outbreak, the relevant authorities had tried to turn to the
markets that had not yet been impacted such as India and Russia as to compensate the losing of Chinese and
European tourists, it subsequently appeared that both India and Russia also suffered no less severe impacts

than other countries.

This disease outbreak has widely caused impacts around the globe as well as several airlines
have to temporarily shut down, cancel flights and lay off employees. It could be said that the economic impacts

are greater than the direct impacts on health.
Tendency of hotel business in 2020 and 2021 is as follows:

1. ltis believed that during the second half of 2020 and the whole 2021, tourism in Thailand
(including Samui Island) needs to mainly rely on domestic market. The main issue that should be considered
is Thai economy is highly dependent on exports and tourism. The economic impacts in Thailand and groups
of countries which are the main market would of course affect the domestic manufacturing sectors that rely on
such markets. Therefore, the domestic purchasing power during the second half of the year may still not be
strong enough to support Thailand’s tourism.

2. In the past, there were only 2 — 3 percent of Thai tourists in the hotel industry in Samui
Island. Speed expansion of this group of tourists to grow by 15 — 20 times of such percentage in order to
compensate foreign tourists within a limited period of time (12 — 18 months) is unlikely possible under the

purchasing power deterioration due to the condition of Thai economy.
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3. The Government allowing hotels to resume their services, airport to reopen and airlines
to resume their services does not mean there will be tourists who will travel and use the services.

4. During late 2020, domestic tourisms will likely be short-distance travels within driving
distance where crowded public transportations will be avoided. Samui Island may not be the tourists’ destination
during this period.

5. Social distancing measure will be the main factor that will cause higher travel expenses.
That is because public transportation operators need to implement social distancing; therefore, they cannot sell
all existing seats.

6. Moreover, there are news saying the Chinese Government will still prohibit Chinese
people from travelling to other countries but will allow domestic travels instead in order to stimulate the Chinese
economy itself. That will cause direct impacts as China is an important tourism market of Thailand.

7. The group of nearby countries also starts to have ‘Travel Bubble’ policy allowing travels
between the contracting countries without having to quarantine for 14 days pursuant to the current measure.
However, there has not yet been a conclusion that will lead to actions.

8. The key factor which will support the recovery of tourism is the vaccine or the medical
measure that is able to deal with the outbreak and treat the iliness efficiently. That should take 1 — 2 more
years.

9. Thailand’s and global tourism industry may have to take around 3 — 4 more years to get

back to the same level before the outbreak.
3.3 Current operation

The Management Company received a letter of request for temporary waiver of rental fees
from the Lessee according to the Letter No. SMB6303/001 dated 27 March 2020 under which the Lessee
informed that the Lessee has suffered impacts from the COVID-19 outbreak situation. Such letter can be

summarized as follows:

1. It has been necessary for the Lessee to cease its operation and have the employees
temporarily stop working from 27 March 2020 onwards until the situation gets back to normal.

2. During this period, the Lessee still arranges security guard(s) to look after the properties
at its best.

3. The Lessee requested that the Fund consider to preliminarily assist by waiving the rental
fees for April 2020 to December 2020.

4. The Lessee requested that all cheques for advance rental fees that were placed with the
Fund be cancelled.

5. The Lessee requested that the situation is assessed with the Fund again within October

2020.
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6. If the disease outbreak situation and the tourism condition gets better or the Lessee is
able to resume its hotel operation before the period during which the Lessee requested for waiver of rental

fees, the Lessee will consider to further proceed in accordance with the Agreement.

Thereafter, the Lessee had coordinated with the Fund in order to discuss and explain the

process to assess if the situation is normal. The situation assessment criteria can be summarized as follows:

1. The Government’s orders requiring the close-down of hotels and businesses relating to
tourism such as restaurants are cancelled resulting in hotels being able to resume their normal operations.

2. The orders to prohibit flights, travelling and international entries and exits and to
quarantine, etc. are cancelled.

3. The International Samui Airport is open as normal.

4. The numbers of flights and passengers entering Samui Island are not less than 50

percent of the figure during the same period in the previous year.

If the above 4 criteria are met, the Lessee agreed to start to pay rental fees within 60 days
as per the rental fee rate under the Agreement as at the payment date and such payment shall be considered

the rental fee for the month in which the rental fee is paid.

In this regard, the Management Company considered that an appropriate waiver of rental

fees would be for no more than October 2020. Therefore, it proposed that the unitholders consider as follows:

1. Waiver of rental fees for the period from April 2020 to October 2020
2. The Lessee to remain having duties to look after the properties to be in good conditions

and ready for use.

Therefore, the Management Company has sent a letter of request for resolutions of
Unitholders according to the details appearing in Agenda 1 as informed to the Meeting above. The Unitholders
had resolved not to approve the waiver of rental fees as requested for by the Lessee and as the Management
Company considered appropriate. As a result, the Management Company has to proceed further in accordance

with the terms and conditions of the Property Lease Agreement.

Initially, the Management Company has appointed Siam City Law Offices DR Limited as legal
counsel in this case. On 31 June 2020, the legal counsel has filed a complaint to the inquiry officer at Koh
Samui Police Station, Surat Thani Province, requesting for prosecution against the Lessee and its authorized
director on offences arising from the uses of cheques since the Management Company was unable to cash 4

pre-dated cheques for rental fees during April — July 2020. The inquiry officer received the complaint as the
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criminal case no. 716/2563 (2020). Subsequently, on 4 August 2020, the Management Company already sent
a demand notice to the Lessee demanding for the outstanding rental fees. The Management Company will
further proceed to enforce the Agreement as per the legal rights to which the Fund is entitled. That includes

filing a lawsuit with the competent court.
3.4 Impacts on the Fund

3.4.1 Financial status of the Fund

The Fund’s revenue was from the Property Lease Agreement that was made with the Lessee.
Under the current Property Lease Agreement, the annual rental fee is close to the Fund’s expenses. Since the
COVID-19 outbreak occurred causing direct impacts on the tourism and hotel industry, the Fund’s financial

status suffered impacts.

In the past seeking of lessees, it appeared that no offer was made. Therefore, it was
necessary to renew the Property Lease Agreement with the original Lessee. Although, in the past, Central
Group had contacted to make a lease offer with the same rental fee and the same lease term with those
currently received by the Fund. The Management Company considered that in seeking new lessee to
commence during November 2020, there may not be any lease offer which is beneficial to the Fund. Also,
under the current situation of tourism and hotel industry, it may be possible that the current Lessee will not

renew the Agreement and deliver the properties back to the Fund as to reduce its costs.

If so, the Fund’s financial status during 2020 — 2022 which the Management Company
assessed based on the assumptions that the Fund will not receive the rental fees until the end of 2020 and
will start to receive the rental fees pursuant to the Agreement from January 2021 up until the end of the lease
term under the Property Lease Agreement (July 2021) and will not be able to seek for a new lessee, and

although the Management Company will refrain from collecting management fees, will be as follows:

2020 2021 2022

Income

Rental fees 1,800,000 4,900,000 0

Interest 4,000 4,000 4,000
Total Income 1,804,000 4,904,000 4,000
Expense

Management Fee 2,743,050 0 0

Trustee Fee 648,000 648,000 648,000
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2020 2021 2022
Registrar Fee 540,000 540,000 540,000
Legal Advisor Fee 240,000 240,000 240,000
Audit Fee 930,000 930,000 930,000
Registration Fee -Annual Basis 107,000 107,000 107,000
Property Appraisal Fee 125,000 125,000 125,000
Expense for Unitholders’ Meeting 350,000 350,000 350,000
Insurance Premium 280,000 280,000 280,000
Other Expense 120,000 120,000 120,000
Total Expenses 6,549,950 3,340,000 3,340,000
Net Income before property and land tax -4,745,950 1,564,000 -3,336,000
Gross Cash (1 January) 6,582,257 1,836,307 3,400,307
Net Cash (31 December) 1,836,307 3,400,307 64,307

The Fund still has an obligation to pay the annual house and building tax of 2018 and 2019

in the total amount of approximately THB 12 million. Such tax has not yet been assessed nor levied by Koh

Samui Municipality. Once it is levied, the Fund’s liquidity will immediately be negative.

The current financial status of the Fund is exposed to the risk in relation to limited liquidity. It
cannot support the fluctuations that may occur in the future including unexpected events. For example, if it is
necessary to enforce the Agreement against the Lessee, the Fund’s financial status might be a restriction to

proceed with legal measures.

3.4.2  Property value of the Fund

The Management Company has appointed Real Estate Appraisal Company Limited to be
appraiser of market value of properties for 2020 on 16 March 2020. From the situation occurred, the Fund has
suffered impacts from the decrease in property values due to the business condition. The Fund determined
that the Income Approach shall be mainly used in the appraisal of market values of the Fund’s properties as it
is an investment in income generated properties and the Income Approach is standard for market value
appraisal of this type of properties. However, under abnormal circumstances, the appraisal using the Income
Approach will cause a significant change in the market value, especially in this case where it is expected that

the properties might not be able to general incomes anytime soon.

11

v3snuannswdianisnaanw wiudiia s1ia 44 enens Fledud ne 51 16 nuundmn 29Ut Lwavu i naunw 10330 Insdwii 0 2686 9500 Tn3ans 0 2657 3167

Principal Asset Management Company Limited 44 CIMB THAI Building 16th Floor Langsuan Road Lumpini Pathumwan Bangkok 10330 Tel. 0 2686 9500 Fax. 0 2657 3167 www.principal.th

In alliance with jg CIMB



O Principal’

On the other hand, if the Replacement Cost Approach is used (which property funds do not
use such approach in determining the market values of its properties), it will be found that the construction
costs may not change significantly. However, there may be an issue to consider with regard to the land price
because, under the current situation, land sale and purchase may not occur. The surveyed market value may

not reflect the sale and purchase price of a sale and purchase that could actually occur.

Under uncertain circumstances, the Forced Sell Value may be the value that correspond to

the situation inferior to the Income Approach as it is the value or the price at which it is expected to be sold.

The market values of properties as per the appraisal are as follows:
1. Market Value THB 399.00 million
2. Forced Sell Value THB 299.25 million

Compared to the past market values, it is found that the market value of the Fund’s properties
tended to decrease continuously. That was caused by high competition in the tourism and hotel industry. The

significant decrease in 2020 was caused by the COVID-19 outbreak situation causing global travel to stop

short.
Market values of properties (Million Baht)
Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Market values 667.50 646.60 601.40 536.80 399.00

3.5 Future operation

The Management Company will arrange for a bidding as to seek for a lessee or purchaser.

A Bid Manager will be appointed with the following duties:

1. providing advice on, and assisting in, the preparation of bidding conditions;

2. providing advice on, and assisting in, the preparation of bidding documents;

3. representing the Fund in contacting investors, advertising and publicizing the bidding;

4. representing the Fund in taking the interested investors to view the properties, gathering
questions and coordinating with the Fund in responding to the questions;

5. representing the Fund in receiving the bids/offers, summarizing and presenting the bid
result to the Fund; and

6. providing advice to the Fund on the negotiation of the terms and conditions.
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Preliminary bidding conditions

Those who are interested may submit their bid/offer to lease or purchase the properties on

the following conditions:

1. Property lease
1) Lease term of 30 years
2) Fund to deliver the properties on an as is where is basis

3) Lessee to be responsible for all expenses for property modifications
2. Property purchase

1)  Minimum purchase price of THB 400 million

2) Fund to deliver the properties on an as is where is basis

Bidding schedule

Opening for the interested persons to receive the bidding conditions
1 November 2020 — 31 January 2021

and information, visit and view the properties for bid preparation

11 February 2021 Bid/offer submission

7 May 2021 Extraordinary Meeting of Unitholders to consider the bid result

Remark: The schedule may be subject to changes as appropriate.

In the case where no property lease or purchase offer is made, the Management Company

will proceed to close the properties and request for an approval from the Office of the Securities and Exchange

Commission to stop its annual operations as to cease or reduce as much annual operating costs as possible.

Meanwhile, the Management Company will further proceed to find the appropriate and most beneficial way for

the unitholders. Also, the Management Company will convene the meeting of the Unitholders to consider

approving such actions again.

Management Company’s opinion

The Management Company has deemed it appropriate to propose to the Unitholders the

report on the Fund’s operation and future management of the Fund for acknowledgement.

Resolution

This agenda item is for acknowledgement and no vote casting is required.
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Agenda 4: To acknowledge the financial status and the performance of the Fund and the financial
statement for the accounting year ending on 30 June 2020 as audited and opined by the

auditor (For Acknowledgement)
4.1 The financial status and the performance of the Fund as appearing in the financial
statement for the accounting year ending on 30 June 2020 as audited and opined by the Fund’s auditor

can be summarized as follows:

Summary of the balance sheet

Total assets THB 408,747,170
Total liabilities THB 17,271,223
Net assets THB 391,475,947
Net assets per unit THB 4.7279
Number of units outstanding as at the end of the year 82,800,000 units

For the past 2019 accounting year, the Fund’'s net assets were THB 391,475,947 which
decreased from those of the previous accounting year being THB 530,892,856 by approximately 26.26 percent

and its net worth was THB 4.7279 per investment unit.

Summary of the income statement

Total income THB 7,203,723
Total income THB 8,820,632
Net investment income (expense) THB (1,616,909)
Net unrealized (loss) profit from investments THB (137,800,000)
Net (decrease) increase in net assets from operations THB (139,416,909)

The Fund'’s total revenues were THB 7,203,723 and it suffered an investment loss of THB
1,616,909. Moreover, there was an investment accounting loss due to the decrease in the property appraisal
price from THB 536,800,000 in the previous year to THB 399,000,000 in 2020. That amounted to the decrease
in value by THB 137,800,000 or approximately 25.67 percent.
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Summary of the cashflow statement

Net cash provided by (paid for) operating activities THB (1,713,745)
Cash flows from financing activities (Dividend paid) THB 0

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents THB (1,713,745)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year THB 8,239,320
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year THB 6,525,575

For the past 2019 accounting year, the Fund refrained from dividend payment and its cash
and cash equivalents as at the accounting year end were THB 6,525,575. The Management Company will

consider managing such money as appropriate.

4.2 Material financial information

4.2.1  Securities price as at 30 June 2020°

Closing Price 2.50 THB / Investment Unit
Market Price 207,000,000 THB

Trading Value 470 THB / Day
Investment Unit Value 4.7279 THB / Investment Unit
Net Asset Value (NAV) 391,475,947.15 THB

4.2.2 History of dividend payments

Period of Performance for Date of Dividend Dividend Payment Rate
No.
Dividend Payment Payment (per Investment Unit)
No. 1 22 Jul — 31 Dec 2010 15 Mar 2011 0.2902
No. 2 1 Jan — 30 Jun 2011 20 Sep 2011 0.3224
No. 3 1 Jul — 31 Dec 2011 9 Mar 2012 0.3375
No. 4 1 Jan — 30 Jun 2012 24 Sep 2012 0.3375
No. 5 1 Jul — 31 Dec 2012 15 Mar 2013 0.3500
No. 6 1 Jan — 30 Jun 2013 23 Sep 2013 0.3500
No. 7 1 Jul — 31 Dec 2013 28 Mar 2014 0.3500
No. 8 1 Jan — 30 Jun 2014 26 Sep 2014 0.0800
2 Last trade was on 26 June 2020.
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4.2.3  History of registered capital reduction

- None -

O Principal’

4.2.4  Expenses charged from the Fund (1 July 2019 — 30 June 2020)

Amount Percentage of
Fund's Direct Expenses*
Unit : Baht Thousand Net Asset Value
Management Fee 3,087.86 0.622
Fund Supervisor Fee 617.57 0.124
Registrar Fee 514.64 0.104
Expenses of Advertising, Public Relations and Sale
Promotion
- During Initial Public Offering
- After Initial Public Offering - -
Legal Fee 909.75 0.183
House and Land Tax 310.63 0.063
Audit Fee 945.50 0.190
Fee of Listing in SET - Annual Basis 103.64 0.021
Insurance Premium 277.41 0.056
Expense for Unitholders’ Meeting 213.59 0.043
Other Expenses 40.03 0.008
Total Expenses ** 7,020.62 1.414

Remark: * Fees and expenses are already inclusive of Value Added Tax, Special Business Tax or other

similar taxation (if any).

** This is exclusive of underwriting/arranger fee and fees arising from securities trading and doubtful

account transactions. With respect to the annual property appraisal cost, it was charged from the

Fund after 30 June 2020. Therefore, such transaction does not appear in this accounting period but

it will appear in the accounting year ending on 30 June 2021 which may be higher than the amount

with respect to the past normal year as it is a total amount of 2020 and 2021.

Management Company’s opinion

The Management Company has deemed it appropriate to propose to the Unitholders the

financial status and the performance of the Fund and the financial statement for the accounting year ending on
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30 June 2020 as audited and opined by the auditor for acknowledgement.
Resolution
This agenda item is for acknowledgement and no vote casting is required.

Agenda 5: To acknowledge the appointment of the Fund’s auditors and audit fees and expenses

for the accounting year ending on 30 June 2021 (For Acknowledgement)

The Management Company has appointed the auditor of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.
to be the Fund’s auditor for the accounting year ending on 30 June 2021. The details of the auditors and the

audit fee are as follows:

Auditors Mr. Sa-nga Chokenitisawat CPA Registration No. 11251
Miss Wanvimol Preechawat CPA Registration No. 9545
Mr. Kan Tanthavirat CPA Registration No. 10456

Location 15" Floor, Bangkok City Tower, 179/74-80 South Sathorn Road, Sathorn District, Bangkok
10120

Fees* THB 940,000

Divided as per each accounting period as follows:

Review the financial statements for the three-month ending on 30 September 2020: THB

160,000

Review the financial statements for the half-year period ending on 30 December 2020: THB

160,000

Review the financial statements for the nine-month period ending on 31 March 2021: THB

160,000

Audit the financial statements for the accounting year ending on 30 June 2021: THB

460,000

Other expenses| As actually paid
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Management Company’s opinion

The Management Company has deemed it appropriate to propose to the Unitholders the
appointment of the Fund’s auditors and audit fees and expenses for the accounting year ending on 30 June

2021 for acknowledgement

Resolution

This agenda item is for acknowledgement and no vote casting is required.

Agenda 6: To consider and approve the proposal on payment process of outstanding rental fees

as proposed by the Lessee (For Consideration)

Reference is made to the Management Company’s letter of request for resolutions of
Unitholders per the details shown in Agenda 1 as informed to the Meeting above. The Unitholders resolved to
disapprove the exemption of rental payment as proposed by the Lessee and as the Management Company
deemed appropriate. As a result, the Lessee currently has outstanding rental fees payable to the Fund in the

total amount of THB 4,500,000 (exclusive of VAT) (rental fees for April 2020 — October 2020).

As the current overall conditions of the tourism and hotel business in both Samui Island and
Thailand are still continuously suffering the impacts from the COVID-19 outbreak, the Lessee has been required
to close the hotel from April 2020 up until present. Therefore, the Lessee has no liquidity to pay its outstanding

rental fees to the Fund.

Subsequent to the Unitholders’ resolution to disapprove the exemption of the rental payment
in the direction sought by the Lessee or as deemed expedient by the Management Company, the Management
Company discussed with the Lessee regarding payment process of outstanding rental fees. One of the
directions in the preliminary discussion is that the Lessee shall compensate for the Unitholders’ benefits in the
form of cash vouchers so that the Unitholders can utilize the leased property. According to the points for
consultation on how the Lessee shall pay the outstanding rental fees, the Management Company researched
on practices for this case by discussing with the Fund’s auditors and legal advisor, as well as initially discussing

with the Securities and Exchange Commission; however, it has not come to a clear conclusion and details.

The Management Company later received letter No. SMB 18092563-1 regarding the proposal
on the Property Lease Agreement, dated 18 September 2020. The Lessee notified the Fund of the current
condition of the hotel and it is uncertain as to when the hotel business operation will be resumed although the

Lessee plans to reopen the hotel service in January 2021. Subsequently, the Lessee has outstanding rental
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fees and the rental fees to be accrued until expiration of the lease term under the Property Lease Agreement
in the total amount of THB 10,800,000 (excluding VAT). The Lessee therefore requests that the Fund consider

the proposal on payment process of outstanding rental fees as follows.

1. Reduction of the entire outstanding fees from THB 10,800,000 (excluding VAT) to THB
4,800,000 (excluding VAT). The Lessee will make payment of the reduced rental fees in the following
installments:
® 1st tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 1 December 2020;
® 2nd tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 31 July 2021;
® 3rd tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 30 June 2022;

® 4th tranche of THB 1,800,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 31 December 2022.

2. Long-term lease for 30 years with the rental rate of no less than the current rate under
the Property Lease Agreement. This is to enable the Lessee to request financial support from a financial
institution since the Lessee has carried out asset improvement with a higher value than the agreed limit under
the Property Lease Agreement, but the Lessee is unable to utilize the property during the lease term under the

Property Lease Agreement.

After receiving the said letter, the Management Company discussed with the Lessee about
the details and process in the proposal, and eventually came to a conclusion involving two directions for
payment of the outstanding rental fees and property lease proposal. The Lessee would like to exercise its right
as the Fund’ Unitholder to request that the Management Company presents the Lessee’s proposal to the

Meeting of Unitholders of the Fund in the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of the Fund, as follows.

1. Proposal on payment process of the outstanding rental fees

1.1 Compensation benefits for the Unitholders in the form of cash vouchers as previously

discussed

The Lessee requests that the Management Company proposes to the Unitholders to

consider compensation benefits, with the following details.

1) The Lessee requests for waiver of payment of the outstanding rental fees for

April 2020 - December 2020 in the total amount of THB 5,900,000 (excluding VAT).
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2) The Lessee agrees to pay rental fees under the Property Lease Agreement for
the period starting from January 2021 until expiration of the lease term thereunder in July 2021, at the rate of
THB 700,000 (excluding VAT) per month.

3) With respect to the outstanding rental fees for which waiver is sought in clause
1), the Lessee agrees to provide compensation benefits directly to the Unitholders in the form of cash vouchers

for use of services in Samui Buri Beach Resort, with the following details.

Outstanding rental fees ( April 2020 — | THB 5,900,000
December 2020)

Total number of investment units 82,800,000 units
Average value THB 0.0713 per unit
Compensation conditions/methods e Cash voucher is worth THB 100 each.

e Any Unitholder shall receive one cash voucher worth THB
100 for every 1,200 investment units held.
e Any Unitholder holding less than 1,200 investment units

shall receive one cash voucher worth THB 100.

Total number of cash vouchers 69,133 vouchers

Total value of cash vouchers THB 6,913,253

4) The Management Company will coordinate the distribution of said cash vouchers

to the Unitholders.

1.2 Cash payment, together with request for debt reduction and payment period extension.

1) The outstanding rental fees for April 2020 - October 2020 and the rental fees to
be accrued under the Property Lease Agreement for November 2020 - July 2021 in the total amount of THB
10,800,000 (excluding VAT) are to be reduced to THB 5,500,000 (excluding VAT).

2) The Lessee requets that it pay the reduced rental fees in the following installments:
® 1st tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 1 December
2020;
® 2nd tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 31 July 2021;
® 3rd tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 30 June 2022;

® 4th tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 31 December
2022;
® 5th tranche of THB 1,500,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 30 June 2023.
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2. Property lease proposal

The Lessee proposes that it rents the property from the Fund. The details of the

lease term and principal conditions are shown below.

Lease term 30 years
Variable rent (yearly)
Rent Fixed rent (monthly) Fund/Lessee’s share of net operating profit
(%)

1st — 3rd year THB 700,000 -

4th — 5th year THB 700,000 20/80

6th — 10th year THB 1,000,000 30/70
11th — 20th year THB 1,200,000 40/60
21st — 30th year THB 1,500,000 50/50

1. The Lessee agrees to, by 30 April 2021, submit to the Fund a total of 12 post-
dated checks to pay for the fixed rent (monthly) in the 1st year (for August 2021 - July 2022).

2. The Fund will appoint an auditor to review the Lessee’s account for the purposes
of profit and loss calculation and variable rent calculation.

3. The operating profit to be used in the profit share calculation means the
operating profit after deducting improvement expenses (approved by the Fund before improvement is carried
out) and fixed rent in the appliable year.

4. The Lessee agrees to pay the Fund a profit share once a year (except for the
1st — 3rd year of the lease term) within October of every year (that is, within 90 days from the end of the lease

year).

Legal advisor’'s opinion

The Fund’s prospectus with respect to the Management Company’s rights, duties and
responsibilities prescribes that the Management Company shall have the right to manage the Fund’s assets to
be in accordance with the law on securities and exchange, as well as any other relevant notifications, and in
compliance with the investment objectives, criteria and limitations, approved projects, and agreements that
have been made. The Management Company shall oversee and manage the Fund with honesty, knowledge,
expertise, and standard or professional care and vigilance for the utmost benefit of all Unitholders pursuant to
the Notification of Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorNor. 36/2562 Re: Property Fund Management,
dated 25 April 2019.
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Therefore, the Management Company has no authority to exercise its discretion in agreeing
to the waiver of outstanding rental fees or rent reduction requested by the Lessee as such action is not in
accordance with the lease agreement and will result in the Fund losing the right to receive full payment under
the lease agreement. Furthermore, even though the current Property Lease Agreement is made for the purpose
of extension of the lease term from that prescribed under the temporary lease agreement, the material lease
terms and conditions were originally approved by the Unitholders’ Meeting. Therefore, change to the lease
terms and conditions which result in adverse effects on the Fund is under the Unitholders’ authority to approve

by a resolution of the Unitholders’ Meeting.

If the Unitholders’ Meeting resolves to disapprove both directions as proposed by the Lessee,
the Fund, by the Management Company, will be required to enforce the claim for payment by the Lessee of all
outstanding rental fees, together with interest, under the Property Lease Agreement, by taking civil and criminal
judicial actions against the Lessee for breach of the Property Lease Agreement and cheque related offense,
respectively. In this regard, the Management Company has appointed a lawyer to proceed with filing of a
complaint with the inquiry officer of Koh Samui Police Station, Surat Thani Province, to take legal action against

the Lessee and its authorized directors.

Moreover, the current Property Lease Agreement contains the 2nd extension of the lease
term under the temporary lease agreement, dated 30 January 2017, for which the Fund, Lessee and relevant
parties made a compromise agreement in court to settle the dispute between them on 30 January 2017. The
compromise agreement prescribes that the temporary lease agreement shall be an integral part thereof. The
temporary lease agreement gives the parties an opportunity to extend the lease term thereunder, and when
the extended temporary lease expires, the Lessee is obligated to return possession of the property and transfer
the hotel busines license and any other existing licenses used in the hotel business operation to the Fund or
its designee within the timeframe determined by the Fund. As the current Property Lease Agreement is for
extension of the lease term under the temporary lease agreement, the Fund may enforce return of the leased
property and transfer of the hotel business license and any other licensed used in the hotel business operation
in the Lessee’s possession to the Fund or its designee upon expiration of the extended temporary lease,
without the need to bring a new action. The Fund, as the judgment creditor, is entitled to petition to the court
for execution in accordance with the compromise agreement and consent judgment. Nonetheless, as the
extension of the lease term under the current Property Lease Agreement involves several terms and conditions
different from those under the temporary lease agreement annexed to the compromise agreement, there is a
risk that this could be challenged as to it being an entering into of a new lease agreement instead of an
extension of the lease term under the temporary lease agreement. If the court views the said challenge
favorably, the Fund would not be able to enforce return of the leased property and transfer of the required

licenses to the Fund under the temporary lease agreement which is an integral part of the compromise
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agreement. The Fund will have to take action under the law by filing a new action to evict the Lessee from the

property, which will necessitate funding and time to proceed.

With respect to the Lessee’s property lease proposal, if the Unitholders’ Meeting approves
such proposal, the Fund, as the lessor, must enter into a new property lease agreement with the principal
terms and conditions in conformity with the resolution of the Unitholders’ Meeting. This entering into of a 30-
year property lease agreement as proposed by the Lessee will be deemed an entering into of a new property
lease agreement because it involves a long-term lease, not a temporary lease under the temporary lease
agreement, which will result in the Fund'’s inability to enforce the compromise agreement. Therefore, if the Fund
and Lessee enter into a new property lease agreement and the Lessee fails to comply with any terms or
conditions thereof, causing termination of the agreement, the Fund will be required to take action under the
law to enforce its rights thereunder, as well as to evict the Lessee from the property, by means of bringing a

new action.

Management Company’s opinion

The Management Company considered the effects on the Fund and benefits that the

Unitholders will receive from both courses of action, which can be summarized as follows.

Effects on the Fund

Effects on the Unitholders

1. Compensation benefits
for the Unitholders in the

form of cash vouchers

The cash vouchers will not be

counted as the Fund’s income.

The outstanding rental fees of
THB 5,900,000 will be written off
as bad debt.

The Fund will begin recognizing
rental income from January 2021
until expiration of the agreement
in the total amount of THB

4,900,000.

The Unitholders will receive cash
vouchers directly in lieu of

outstanding rental fees.

Due to the reduced rental fees, it
is expected that the Unitholders

might not receive dividends.

2. Cash payment with
request for debt reduction
and payment period

extension

The outstanding rent for which
reduction is sought in the amount
of THB 5,300,000 will be written
off as bad debt.

The Fund will receive debt

payment in cash instalments in

Due to the reduced rental fees, it
is expected that the Unitholders

might not receive dividends.
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Effects on the Fund Effects on the Unitholders

the total amount of THB
5,500,000 within a period of 30

months.

® The dividends will be calculated
based on profit and loss and paid

in accordance with the criteria

specified in the prospectus.

In this case, the Management Company is of the view that the effects on the Fund from
following both courses action are slightly different as to write-off of outstanding rental fees in the amount of
THB 5,900,000 and amount of THB 5,300,000. However, there is significant difference in rental fees to be
received by the Fund in cash, that is, the Fund will receive a total rent of THB 4,900,000 within seven months
with respect to the course of action where the Unitholders will be compensated for their benefits in the form of
cash vouchers, while the Fund will receive a total rent of THB 5,500,000 within 30 months in the event of cash

payment with request for debt reduction and payment period extension.

Considering the effects on the Fund’s Unitholders, the Management Company views that, the
Fund will have to write off bad debt which might result in the Fund having no operating profit to be paid as
dividends to the Unitholders. With respect to compensation benefits for the Unitholders in the form of cash
vouchers, the Unitholders will be entitled to receive cash vouchers for utilization of the property pro rata to their
existing investment ratio or at least at the value of THB 100. For cash payment with request for debt reduction
and payment period extension, the Unitholders will not be entitled to receive any other benefits to compensate

for nonreceipt of dividends from the Fund.

In summary, the Management Company opines that the course of action where the
Unitholders are to be compensated in the form of cash vouchers will enable the Unitholders to receive more
and direct benefits in comparison to the course of action where payment is to be made in cash, with the request

for debt reduction and payment period extension.

Nonetheless, if the Unitholders resolve to disapprove both directions, the Management

Company will further proceed with enforcing the terms and conditions of the Property Lease Agreement.

This agenda item which includes the proposal for the Fund’s Unitholders’ consideration and
resolution is divided into three sub-agenda items due to their continuous nature. However, if the Unitholders

resolve to approve action following the direction proposed in Agenda 6.1, the matter in Agenda 6.2 will not be
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considered, and the Management Company will further propose the matter in Agenda 6.3 for the Unitholders’

consideration.

Agenda 6.1: To consider and approve the compensation benefits for the Unitholders in the form of

cash vouchers (For Approval)

For this agenda, the Management Company hereby proposes to the Unitholders to consider
whether or not to approve the compensation benefits for the Unitholders in the form of cash vouchers, with the

details shown below.

1) The Lessee requests for waiver of payment of the outstanding rental fees for April 2020
- December 2020 in the total amount of THB 5,900,000 (excluding VAT).

2) The Lessee agrees to pay rental fees under the Property Lease Agreement for the period
starting from January 2021 until expiration of the lease term thereunder in July 2021, at the rate of THB 700,000
(excluding VAT) per month.

3) With respect to the outstanding rental fees for which waiver is sought in clause 1), the
Lessee agrees to provide compensation benefits directly to the Unitholders in the form of cash vouchers for

use of services in Samui Buri Beach Resort, with the following details.

Outstanding rental fees ( April 2020 — | THB 5,900,000
December 2020)
Total number of investment units 82,800,000 units
Average value THB 0.0713 per unit
Compensation conditions/methods e  Cash voucher is worth THB 100 each.
e Any Unitholder shall receive one cash voucher worth THB
100 for every 1,200 investment units held.
e Any Unitholder holding less than 1,200 investment units
shall receive one cash voucher worth THB 100.
Total number of cash vouchers 69,133 vouchers
Total value of cash vouchers THB 6,913,253

4) The Management Company will coordinate the distribution of said cash vouchers to the

Unitholders.

Legal advisor’s opinion

As the waiver of payment of the outstanding rental fees per the Lessee’s proposal means the
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Fund will be managed in the direction which does not go in accord with the agreement made by the Fund,
which will result in the Unitholders’ loss of receivable benefits, it is therefore not under the Management
Company'’s authority to consider under relevant rules and the prospectus for offering for sale of the investment

units. This action requires a resolution of the Unitholders.

If the Lessee wishes to provide cash vouchers directly to the Unitholders as compensation
benefits, with the Management Company being responsible for distributing them to the Unitholders, the cash
voucher value shall neither be regarded as the Fund’s income nor acceptance of rental debt payment with
other assets because it is provision of benefits to the Unitholders, not debt repayment under the lease
agreement to the Fund, as the lessor. It is also not deemed as dividend payment to the Unitholders as dividend
payment is made from the Fund’s retained earnings or net profit in the event that the Fund’s profit meets the
criteria prescribed under clause 7 of the prospectus. If the Unitholders’ Meeting resolves to approve the Fund
to take action in the said direction, which includes granting the Lessee waiver of payment of the outstanding
rental fees, the outstanding rental debt shall be deemed to have been extinguished upon an agreement between
the Fund and Lessee in writing. The terms and conditions of the waiver of debt repayment and rental debt

payment must be in accordance with the resolution of the Unitholders’ Meeting.

Management Company’s opinion

The Management Company is of the view that the Fund will be affected by the write-off of
the outstanding rental fees for April 2020 - December 2020 in the total amount of THB 5,900,000, constituting
loss of rental income under the Property Lease Agreement, which may result in the Fund having no operating
profit that could be paid as dividends to the Unitholders. However, the Unitholders will be entitled to receive
cash vouchers for utilization of the property pro rata to their existing investment ratio or at least at the value of
THB 100 to compensate for non-payment of dividends by the Fund to the Unitholders through following such

course of action.

Therefore, providing compensation benefits to the Unitholders in the form of cash vouchers
is the course of action that directly and better benefits the Unitholders in comparison with cash payment with
request for debt reduction and payment period extension. Furthermore, the Lessee agrees to pay rent from
January 2021 until expiration of the lease term under the agreement in July 2021 at the rate of THB 700,000
per month. The Fund will be able to recognize rental income in the total amount of THB 4,900,000 within seven
months, which, when comparing with the cash payment with the request for debt reduction and payment period
extension, the Fund will be able to receive rental payment within 30 months. The Management Company views
that the fact that the Fund can begin recognizing rental income starting from January 2021 until expiration of

the lease term under the agreement will be more beneficial to the Fund and Unitholders.
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Resolution

This agenda item requires a resolution passed by a majority of votes out of the total number

of investment units held by the Unitholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote.

Unitholders with special interest

Based on the list of the Fund’s Unitholders as of 15 June 2021, the Unitholders with special
interest which are not entitled to vote on this agenda are Samui Buri Beach Resort Company Limited, holding
6,285,500 investment units, and Ms. Pornpat Praprutchob, holding 2,377,020 investment units, or equivalent
to an aggregate of 10.46 percent of the total number of issued investment units of the Fund, that will not be

included by the Management Company in the vote counting for this agenda item.

Agenda 6.2: To consider and approve debt reduction and payment period extension

(For Approval)

If the Unitholders resolve to disapprove the proposal per this Agenda 6.2, the Management

Company will further proceed with enforcement of the terms and conditions of the Property Lease Agreement.

For this agenda, the Management Company requests that the Unitholders consider whether

or not to approve the debt reduction and payment period extension, with the details shown below.

1) The outstanding rental fees for April 2020 - October 2020 and the rental fees to be
accrued under the Property Lease Agreement for November 2020 - July 2021 in the total amount of THB
10,800,000 (excluding VAT) are to be reduced to THB 5,500,000 (excluding VAT).

2) The Lessee requests that it pay the reduced rental fees in the following installments:
® 1st tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 1 December 2020;
® 2nd tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 31 July 2021;
® 3rd tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 30 June 2022;
® 4th tranche of THB 1,000,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 31 December 2022;
® 5th tranche of THB 1,500,000 (excluding VAT) to be paid by 30 June 2023.

Legal advisor’s opinion

The reduction of the entire rental debt as proposed by the Lessee is considered management

of the Fund that does not conform to the agreement made by the Fund, which will result in the Unitholders’
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loss of receivable benefits. This matter is therefore not under the Management Company’s authority to consider
under relevant rules and the prospectus for offering for sale of the investment units. This action requires a
resolution of the Unitholders, like the case in Agenda 6.1 above. If the Unitholders’ Meeting resolves to approve
taking action in the direction stated in this agenda item, the Fund and Lessee shall enter into an addendum to
the Property Lease Agreement for the purposes of reduction of the total rental fees thereunder and
determination of the conditions for payment of the reduced rental fees, the subject matter of which shall be in

accordance with the resolution of the Unitholders’ Meeting.

Management Company’s opinion

The Management Company views that the reduction of the outstanding rental fees from the
original amount of THB 10,800,000 to THB 5,500,000 will result in the Fund being affected by the bad debt
write-off of the THB 5,300,000 outstanding rental fees. This is considered loss of rental income under the
Property Lease Agreement, which may result in the Fund’s having no operating profit that could be paid as
dividends to the Unitholders, like the case in Agenda 6.1 above. In this case, the Unitholders will not receive
any other benefits to compensate for suspension of the Fund’s dividend payments, in comparison with the
course of action in which the Unitholders are to be compensated for benefits in the form of cash vouchers for
use of services in Samui Buri Beach Resort. In addition, the Lessee requests that it pay the reduced rental
fees in five installments commencing from December 2020 to June 2023, as a result, the Fund will be able to
recognize the rental income under the agreement in the amount of THB 5,500,000 within 30 months, which is
a significantly longer period than following the direction in Agenda 6.1. Therefore, the Management Company
opines that the debt reduction and payment period extension may affect the Fund’s liquidity, causing it to be
unable to recognize the total rental income under the Property Lease Agreement in the near future or to handle
possible future fluctuation, and that the Fund’s financial status may be a limitation in the Fund’s operation

afterwards.

Resolution

This agenda item requires a resolution passed by a majority of votes out of the total number

of investment units held by the Unitholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote.

Unitholders with special interest

Based on the list of the Fund’s Unitholders as of 15 June 2021, the Unitholders with special
interest which are not entitled to vote on this agenda are Samui Buri Beach Resort Company Limited, holding
6,285,500 investment units, and Ms. Pornpat Praprutchob, holding 2,377,020 investment units, or equivalent
to an aggregate of 10.46 percent of the total number of issued investment units of the Fund, that will not be

included by the Management Company in the vote counting for this agenda item.
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Agenda 6.3: To consider and approve the Lessee’s property lease proposal (For Approval)

If the Unitholders consider and approve this proposal, the Management Company will cancel

the bidding for selection of a lessee or purchaser of the property as provided in Agenda 3.

For this agenda, the Management Company hereby proposes to the Unitholders to consider
whether or not to approve the Lessee’s property lease proposal, with the details of the lease term and principal

conditions as follows.

Lease term 30 years
Variable rent (yearly)
Rent Fixed rent (monthly) Fund/Lessee’s share of net operating
profit (%)

1st — 3rd year THB 700,000 -

4th — 5th year THB 700,000 20/80

6th — 10th year THB 1,000,000 30/70
11th — 20th year THB 1,200,000 40/60
21st — 30th year THB 1,500,000 50/50

1. The Lessee agrees to, by 30 April 2021, submit to the Fund a total of 12 post-dated
checks to pay for the fixed rent (monthly) in the 1st year (for August 2021 - July 2022).

2. The Fund will appoint an auditor to review the Lessee’s account for the purposes of profit
and loss calculation and variable rent calculation.

3. The operating profit to be used in the profit share calculation means the operating profit
after deducting improvement expenses (approved by the Fund before improvement was carried out) and fixed
rent in the appliable year.

4. The Lessee agrees to pay the Fund a profit share once a year (except for the 1st — 3rd

year of the lease term) within October of every year (that is, within 90 days from the end of the lease year).

Furthermore, the Management Company hereby proposes to the Unitholders to consider
authorizing the Management Company to discuss, negotiate and make an agreement concerning terms and
conditions of the said property lease with the Lessee as it deems appropriate for the utmost benefit of the

Fund.
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Legal advisor’'s opinion

If the Unitholders’ Meeting considers and approves the said proposal, the Fund, as the lessor,
must enter into a new property lease agreement with the Lessee, with the principal terms and conditions in
accordance with the resolution of the Unitholders’ Meeting. Although no legal provisions explicitly prescribe that
the Management Company shall have the duty to manage the Fund in accordance with the Meeting of
Unitholders of the Fund, the Fund Management Project prescribes that the Unitholders shall have the right to
vote on a resolution concerning management of the Fund as determined in the Project and to vote on a
resolution to amend the Fund Management Project or the Fund management methods. This outlines the
management of the Fund with which the Management Company has the duty to comply. Therefore, if the
Meeting resolves to disapprove the said property lease, the Management Company cannot enter into a property

lease agreement with the Lessee in violation of the resolution of the Unitholders’ Meeting.

Management Company’s opinion

According to the plan on bidding to seek a lessee or purchaser of the Fund’s property which
will commence this November, the Management Company views that the consideration of the proposal received
may not confirm whether it is the best or suitable proposal for the Fund. Moreover, such property lease proposal
may also be regarded as closing the door on selection of a purchaser of the Fund’s property. Therefore, if the
Unitholders’ Meeting considers and approves the Lessee’s property lease proposal, as detailed in this agenda

item, the Management Company will cancel this bidding for seeking a purchaser or lessee.

However, under the COVID-19 outbreak situation and overall tourism market of the country
which may take 3-4 years to recover to the same level as in 2019, the Management Company cannot confirm
whether there will be any interested bidders in this bidding for seeking a purchaser or lessee to be arranged.
If the Management Company is to include the Lessee’s current proposal in the pool of offers from the bidding
for consideration, it might not be fair to the Lessee as other interested parties are informed of the details of the

Lessee’s proposal and will be able to make an offer with slightly better conditions to win the bid.

In this case, the Management Company views that if the conditions under the Lessee’s
proposal are those offered in the bidding under the current tourism market condition which is still in deadlock
and might be prolonged for another 3-4 years, the said proposal can be deemed as reasonable and it is likely
for the Fund to receive profit share when the overall business condition improves in correspondence with the
economy. Nonetheless, as the Management Company received this property lease proposal prior to the bidding
on the condition that acceptance of the Lessee’s proposal will cause the Management Company to cancel the
bidding, this proposal may also be regarded as closing the door on the Fund’s opportunity to receive other

offers in the future.
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If the Unitholders wish to sell the property and accept the risk of purchase offer being or not
being offered, the Unitholders should consider to disapprove this property lease proposal of the Lessee because
it is inconsistent with the wish to sell the property and dissolve the Fund in order to average out the money

back to the Unitholders.

As the Management Company has interest as a result of the Unitholders’ decision-making,
where, if the Unitholders consider approving the Lessee’s property lease proposal, the Management Company
will continue to receive fees for managing the Fund, it may be deemed that the Management Company benefits
from suggesting the Unitholders to consider approving this proposal. Therefore, the Management Company
hereby asks the Unitholders to consider the aspect of investment unit holding as to whether the Unitholders
wish to continue holding investment units of the Fund in the long term or whether they have a plan to sell the
investment units in the near future. If the Unitholders still desire to continue holding the investment units or
wish to wait for the property value to adjust up, and does not want to take the risk of no offers being made in
the bidding for selection of a purchaser or lessee, it is an appropriate option to approve the Lessee’s property
lease proposal. On the other hand, if the Unitholders has no desire to hold the investment units in the long
term, wish to dissolve the Fund in order to sell the property and average out the money, and are prepared to
take the risk involving the bidding arrangement, the consideration to approve the Lessee’s property lease
proposal may not be a good option, and therefore, the Unitholders should not approve this property lease

proposal of the Lessee.
Resolution

This agenda item requires a resolution passed by a majority of votes out of the total number

of investment units held by the Unitholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote.

Unitholders with special interest

Based on the list of the Fund’s Unitholders as of 15 June 2021, the Unitholders with special
interest which are not entitled to vote on this agenda are Samui Buri Beach Resort Company Limited, holding
6,285,500 investment units, and Ms. Pornpat Praprutchob, holding 2,377,020 investment units, or equivalent
to an aggregate of 10.46 percent of the total number of issued investment units of the Fund, that will not be

included by the Management Company in the vote counting for this agenda item.
Agenda 7: Other matters (if any)

The Management Company would like to invite the Unitholders of the Fund to attend the
meeting on the date and at the time and venue indicated herein, as shown on the map of the meeting venue,

Enclosure 5. The Unitholders are requested to review the instructions on registration, attendance and proxy,

31

v3gmuannswdianisnanw wiudiia s1ia 44 evens Fladud ny U 16 DUURAIRIU 29Ut Lwavu i naunw 10330 Insdwii 0 2686 9500 Tn3ans 0 2657 3167
Principal Asset Management Company Limited 44 CIMB THAI Building 16th Floor Langsuan Road Lumpini Pathumwan Bangkok 10330 Tel. 0 2686 9500 Fax. 0 2657 3167 www.principal.th

In alliance with jg CIMB



0 Principal’

as detailed in Enclosure 3. Any Unitholder who cannot attend the meeting in person and wishes to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote at this meeting, kindly fill out and sign the proxy form, per Enclosure 4. A proxy
may be granted to the Fund Manager by sending the Management Company the proxy form affixed with
THB 20 (twenty baht) stamp duty, as shown in Enclosure 4, together with supporting documents, by Tuesday,

27 October 2020. The Management Company has attached herewith a prepaid return envelope, as per

Enclosure 6.
Please be informed accordingly.

Yours sincerely,

(o= =3
\__

(Mr. Suttipan Kreemaha)
Senior Vice President
Head of the Property Fund and

Real Estate Investment Trust Department

Property Fund and Real Estate Investment Trust Department
Tel: 02-018-3446
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Attachment 1 O Pri nci F)a.lSM

Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of
Samui Buri Property Fund (SBPF) for the Year 2019
on Friday 25 October 2019 at 9.30 a.m.
at Eastin Grand Hotel Sathorn, Bangkok, Surasak 1 Conference Room, on 11" Floor

at No. 33/1, South Sathorn Road, Yannawa Sub-district, Sathorn District, Bangkok 10120

Attendees:

Management Company

Mr. Suttipan Kreemaha Chairman of the Meeting / Senior Vice President,
Head of the Property Fund and Real Estate —

Investment Trust Department / Property Fund Manager

Expert

Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee Legal Advisor from Kompass Law Ltd.

Mr. Vullope Techakasin Tax Legal Advisor from Siam City Law Offices Limited
Miss Pitchabsorn Whangruammit Tax Legal Advisor from Siam City Law Offices Limited
Trustee

2 representatives from Citibank N.A. Bangkok

Auditors

2 representative from Pricewaterhouse Coopers ABAS Limited

Witness to the Vote Count

Miss Parima Anussornnitisarn Representative of Kompass Law Ltd.

Miss Pimpare Sukcharoen Representative of Unitholders

The Meeting commenced at approximately 9.30 a.m.

Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee, Legal Advisor, assigned by the Chairman, informed the Meeting that,
at this Meeting, there were 37 Unitholders, holding the aggregate number of 1,056,165 investment units, who
attended the Meeting in person, and there were 25 Unitholders, holding the aggregate number of 32,182,418
investment units, who attended the Meeting by proxy. In total, there were 62 Unitholders who attended the
Meeting in person and by proxy holding the aggregate number of 33,238,583 investment units, equivalent to

40.1432 percent which exceeded 1/3 of the total investment units sold (82,800,000 units), thus, the quorum
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was formed in accordance with the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. ThorNor. 36/2562,
Re: The Management of Property Fund together with Section 129/2 of Securities and Exchange Act B.E.2535

he declared the Meeting open.

Then, he thanked all Unitholders for attending the Meeting. He also thanked the
representatives from Citibank N.A. Bangkok, the Fund’s Trustee, and representatives from Pricewaterhouse

Coopers ABAS Limited, auditor of the Fund, for being the witnesses of this Meeting.

Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee, Legal Advisor, explained to the Meeting that, in voting on each agenda,
1 investment unit would be treated as 1 vote. The number of votes, a Unitholder had corresponded to the
number of units held by him or granted to him as a proxy only. In passing a resolution in each agenda, for the
convenience of vote counting, there would be statement to the Meeting asking, “if there was any Unitholder
who disagreed or abstained from voting on the agenda”. A Unitholder who wished to cast disapproval vote or
abstain from voting was required to mark the ballot and present himself by raising hand. The officer would
collect such ballot where the ballot was given to the unitholder during his/her registration. With respect to the
Unitholders who did not disapprove or abstain from voting, all of their votes would be treated as approval votes.
With regard to the ballot not showing clear intention of voter, or the ballot with many markings in boxes or the
crossed ballot or corrected ballot without the initial at such marking would be deemed as a void ballot. In
counting votes, the total votes of the Unitholders attending the Meeting and having the right to vote, would be
deducted by the disapproval and abstention votes. If any agenda without disapproval and abstention votes, it

would deem that the Meeting unanimously resolved to approve or agree as proposed in such agenda.

In this regard, for the transparency of vote counting, the representative from Kompass Law
Ltd., the Fund’s Legal Advisor, and a representative from the Unitholders were invited to witness the vote
counting process. Miss Pimpare Sukcharoen, a proxy, proposed herself to witness the same. For this meeting,
there would be proposed information to the Unitholders as specified in the invitation letter. The Management
Company would present the detail of each agenda and would ask the Unitholders for their mutual resolution.
In case the Unitholder wished to give opinion or have inquiry aside from the considering matter, should give

opinion or have inquiry in the end of the Meeting.

Then, Mr. Suttipan Kreemaha, Senior Vice President, Head of the Property Fund and Real
Estate — Investment Trust Department of the Management Company, as the Chairman of the Meeting,
conducted the Meeting according to the agendas as follows:

Agenda 1: Chairman’s matters for acknowledgement (For Acknowledgement)

The Chairman informed the Meeting as follows:
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1. Convening of Annual General Meeting of Unitholders

As the Capital Market Supervisory Board issued the Notification of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board No. TorNor. 36/2562 RE: the Management of the Fund, dated 25 April 2019, where the
Notification prescribes that

“The management company must convene a unitholders’ meeting as annual meeting
within 4 months after the end of each fiscal year of the Fund to report to the unitholders’ meeting to acknowledge
at least the following matters:

(1)  Important matters in relation to management of the Fund and future
management plan of the Fund;

(2)  Fund’s financial status and operating result of the Fund in the previous fiscal
year where at least the audited financial statements and the auditor's opinion must be presented;

(3) Appointment of the Fund’s auditor and remuneration of auditor.

The convening of an annual general meeting as prescribed in the first paragraph
must start from the fiscal year ending on or after 31 December 2018 but not later than 30 December 2019.

The management company must convene the meeting within 4 months after the end of such fiscal year.”

Therefore, the Management Company will convene the Annual General Meeting of
Unitholders for year 2019 as the first annual unitholders’ meeting of the Fund according to the abovementioned

rules

2. Land and Building Tax Act, B.E. 2562
The Chairman asked Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee, Legal Advisor, to give clarifications to

the Meeting.

Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee, Legal Advisor, clarified to the Meeting by making a
comparison of material contents between the previous Building and Land Tax Act and the Land and Building

Tax Act, B.E. 2562, as follows.

Issue Previous Building and Land and Building Tax Act Note / Effect on the Fund
Land Tax Act B.E. 2562
Tax base | Annual value (the amount Total value of land or Generally, the annual value is rent
for which the property building (appraisal value) of the property received by the
should be leased on a Fund and is lower than the Fund’s
yearly basis) property value. This change causes
the tax base to be higher and may
increase tax burden for the Fund.
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Issue

Previous Building and

Land Tax Act

Land and Building Tax Act
B.E. 2562

Note / Effect on the Fund

Tax rate

12.5 percent of the annual

value

0.15-1.20 percent of the tax
base (depending on property

usage)

The tax rate for the Fund’s property
will not exceed 1.20 percent of the
total value of the Fund’s land or
building. However, at present, the
royal decree determining the actual
collecting tax rate has not yet been
promulgated. Therefore, an exact
increased tax burden of the Fund

cannot be determined.

Section 94(5) of the Land and
Building Tax Act B.E. 2562
prescribes the tax rate in the first
two years for land or building being
used in any manner other than for
agricultural and residential
purposes as follows:

(1) for value of tax base not
exceeding 50 million baht, the tax
rate of 0.3 percent shall apply;

(2) for value of tax base exceeding
50 million baht, but not more than
200 million baht, the tax rate of 0.4
percent shall apply;

(3) for value of tax base exceeding
200 million baht, but not more than
1 billion baht, the tax rate of 0.5
percent shall apply.

Period for

tax return

filing and
tax

payment

Tax return must be filed by
February of every year,
and tax payment must be
made within 30 days from
the date of receipt of

assessment notice

Official sends the taxpayer
an assessment form by
February of every year. Tax
payment must be made by

April of every year.
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No unitholder gave opinion or had any inquiry, accordingly, the Meeting acknowledged as

informed by the Chairman.
Agenda 2: To approve the minutes of the Unitholders’ Meeting No. 1/2560 (For Consideration)

The Chairman stated that, the Management Company has held the Unitholders’ Meeting
No0.1/2017 on 14 July 2017, the Management Company correctly prepare the Minutes of the Unitholders’
Meeting which was sent to the Unitholders together with the Meeting Invitation Letter. Therefore, the
Management Company proposed the Unitholders’ Meeting to consider and approve the Minutes of such

Unitholders’ Meeting.

Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee, Legal Advisor, explained voting procedure in this agenda to the
Meeting that, to approve the matter in this agenda, a majority vote of the total votes of the Unitholders who
attended the Meeting and had their right to vote was required. In this agenda, none of the Unitholder had

conflict of interest. The Chairman then asked the Meeting to vote.

Resolution The Meeting approved the minutes of the Unitholders’ Meeting No. 1/2017 on 14

July 2017, with the number of votes as follows:

Approve 32,916,484 units or equivalent to 97.8438 percent*
Disapprove 0 units or equivalent to 0 percent*
Void Ballots 725,400 wunits or equivalent to 2.1562 percent®

*Percentage of total number units of the unitholders attending the Meeting and having the right

to cast their votes

In this agenda, there were additional unitholders attending the Meeting in a total number of 7
persons, holding altogether 403,301 units. The total investment units of the unitholders who attend the

Meeting and have the right to vote are 33,641,884 units.

Agenda 3: To acknowledge the report of the Fund’s operation and course of action for future

management of the Fund (For Acknowledgement);

1 Koh Samui tourism and hotel market overview
According to the data from Tourism Authority of Thailand, in 2018, Koh Samui had
2,736,759 tourists, divided into 60,796 Thais and 2,676,963 foreigners. The numbers of tourists in 2017 and
2018 slightly increased from previous years by approximately 1.07 and 1.63 percent respectively. Likewise, the

numbers of hotel-staying tourists were relatively unchanged. In 2018, there were a total of 2,658,419 hotel-
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stayin tourists, which slightly increased from 2017 in the numbers of 2,622,733 tourists. In 2018, there were
60,636 Thai hotel-staying tourists, decreasing from the previous years in the numbers of 60,693 tourists.
Meanwhile, in 2018, there were 2,597,783 foreign hotel-staying tourists, close to the numbers of the previous
year, which were 2,562,040 tourists. In contrast with relatively stable tourist numbers in 2017 and 2018, there
were a total of 22,388 rooms on Koh Samui in 2018, an increase from 21,739 rooms in 2017. In comparison
to the year 2014, where the numbers of the rooms were 19,970 rooms, it indicates that the number of rooms
on Koh Samui has grown by 2,418 rooms, or approximately 12.11 percent, in the past five years. There was a
minor increase in the average duration of stay on Koh Samui from 4.01 days in 2017 to 4.25 days in 2018.
However, when considering in the past five years, it shows that the average duration of stay remained stable
at approximately 4.11 days. In 2018, the average occupancy rate was at approximately 74.84 percent, which
was an improvement. In the previous five years, the average occupancy rates fell in the 70 percent range.
However, the calculation of the occupancy rate is based on available rooms, excluding the rooms, which was
unavailable for renovation, resulting in it being like there are high occupancy rates for hotels on Koh Samui.
Moreover, the calculation of these occupancy rates does not take into account decreased room prices due to

rising competition.

2 Property condition

According to the annual property inspection carried out on 23 August 2019, the overall
property condition is normal wear and tear. Due to coastal weather conditions, deterioration of the property is
at a faster rate and more than that of properties located in urban areas. The Lessee has carried out renovation
on the Property as proposed in the conditions on lease agreement renewal. The Management Company entered
the Property to conduct an initial inspection and found that the Lessee actually performed according to plan,
with additions to the work plan and budget as it found that there was additional damage to the actual Property
from previously assessed. The Management Company is in the course of procuring an advisory engineer to
verify whether the volume and value of work are in accordance with the agreement. Nevertheless, due to
deterioration of the Property found in the actual inspection being more than in the assessment, the Management
Company will discuss with the advisory engineer (pending procurement) about the scope of work and budget
required in renovating the Property to be in merchantable quality to further prepare a work plan and propose

to unitholders for consideration.
3 Property and Land Tax

3.1 Payment of Property and Land Tax of the Fund
On 28 July 2010, the Fund made a property purchase contract to buy 5 plots of land with
the total area of 13 rai 27 sq.wah; buildings and facility system for Samui Buri Beach Resort Hotel business
(former name “Mercure Samui Buri Resort Hotel”) from Samui Buri Beach Resort Co., Ltd., the owner of the

property, which the Fund initially invested with the value of 828,000,000 Baht for utilization of such property
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by lease. On the same day at the Office of Land Department of Surat Thani Province, Koh Samui Branch, two
property lease agreements, i.e. Land and Buildings Lease Agreement; and Facilities System, Furnitures and
Fixture Lease Agreement between the Fund and Samui Buri Co., Ltd. (“Lessee”) were legally registered and
signed. The terms of both lease agreements are for the period of 15 years from July 28, 2010 to July 27, 2025.
According to the conditions of the agreements, it is the responsibility of the Lessee to pay Property and Land
Tax, Local Tax, Signboard Tax and other Taxes required by the Government. However, suboth lease

agreements were cancelled with effective date on April 4, 2015.

Through the period of both lease agreements since July 28, 2010, Samui Buri Beach Resort
Co., Ltd., as former Lessee, has continuously paid all Property Land Tax as per the assessment and collection

by Koh Samui Municipality Office, details as shown below:

Paid Property
Tax Year and Land Tax Remarks
(Baht)

2010 467,276 Fully paid as evaluated and collected by Koh Samui Municipality Office.
2011 522,148 Fully paid as evaluated and collected by Koh Samui Municipality Office.
2012 449,208 Fully paid as evaluated and collected by Koh Samui Municipality Office.
2013 428,270 Fully paid as evaluated and collected by Koh Samui Municipality Office.
2014 382,018 Fully paid as evaluated and collected by Koh Samui Municipality Office.

The Fund has terminated Lease Agreement with effective on April 4,
2015 360,580

2015.

The Fund has terminated Lease Agreement with effective on April 4,
2016 431,010

2015.
Total 3,040,510

3.2 5-Year Backdate Property and Land Tax Assessment

Later, on April 24, 2017 the letter of Koh Samui Municipality Office RE: Notification of Payment
of Property and Land Tax of the year 2013 (Additional Payment) to the year 2017 was sent to the Fund. The
main content was that in the Tax Year of 2016, Koh Samui Municipality Office found the fact that the Fund and
Samui Buri Beach Resort Co., Ltd. had made the 15-year lease agreement from July 28, 2010 to July 27, 2025
with the total rental fee of 724,800,000 Baht, which is 48,320,000 Baht per year. In such case, the Fund, as
property owner, is responsible to pay Property and Land Tax treated with the annual rental fee of lease
agreement as annual valuation, according to Section 8 Paragraph 3 of the Property and Land Tax Act B.E.
2475. Based on rental fee from the lease agreement dated July 28, 2010, Koh Samui Municipality Office then

considered the annual property and land tax evaluation at the amount of 6,040,000 Baht per year. However,
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Samui Buri Beach Resort Co., Ltd., on behalf of the Fund, had submitted the incorrect Property and Land Tax
Report, resulting in Koh Samui Municipality Office having the full right to re-evaluate the property and land tax
not exceeding 5-year backdated according to Section 24 of the Property and Land Tax Act 2475 B.E and the

Fund being liable to pay additional property and land tax as follows:

Tax Year Paid Property and Land Tax (Baht) Additional Property and Land Tax (Baht)

2013 428,270 5,611,730

2014 382,018 5,657,982

2015 360,580 5,679,420

2016 431,010 5,608,990

2017 6,040,000

2018 (Not yet assessed and collected)

Total 7,641,878 22,558,122

3.3 Submission the Appeal to Reject the Assessment of the Property and Land Tax

On May 8, 2017, the Fund has submitted the appeal to reject the assessment of the property
and land Tax to the Appeal Committee for cancellation of the letter RE: Notification of Property and Land Tax
Payment Year 2013 (Additional Payment) to Year 2017. Later, on July 26, 2017, the Appeal Committee has
sent the letter notifying the writ for assessment of property and land tax to the Fund to make payment of
additional property and land tax assessed by Koh Samui Municipality Office. The Fund had paid the Property
and Land Tax for the year 2013 (Additional Payment) to year 2017 as well as surcharge according to the law
in the total amount of 31,457,935 Baht to Koh Samui Municipality Office. The said amount was for 28,598,122
Baht as the Property and Land Tax for the year 2013 (Additional Payment) to year 2017; and 2,859,813 Baht
as the surcharge for maintain the right to appeal to the Central Tax Court for the assessment of the Property

and Land Tax for the year 2013 (Additional Payment) to year 2017.

In this regard, the Management Company has assigned Siam City Law Office as the lawyer
to file a lawsuit against Koh Samui Municipality Office to the Central Tax Court to revoke the assessment of
the Property and Land Tax for the year 2013 (Additional Payment) to year 2017 by Koh Samui Municipality
Office and to revoke the decision of the Appeal Committee as well as to reclaim the Property and Land Tax
for the year 2013 (Additional Payment) to Year 2017 overcharged by Koh Samui Municipality Office in the
amount of 31,026,925 Baht of and the interest of 7.5% per year from the end of the three-month period after
the end of the lawsuit until the date Koh Samui Municipality Office repays the complete amount to the Fund.
The Fund had filed the lawsuit to the Central Tax Court on September 8, 2017 as Undecided Case No. Por
182/2560 between Samui Buri Property Fund as the plaintiff and Koh Samui Municipality Office as defendant.
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Later, the Central Tax Court has rendered the judgement on May 23, 2018 as Decided Case No. Por 77/2561.

The Court’s judgement is summarized as follows:

“Samui Buri Beach Resort Co., Ltd. who is responsible to submit the Property and Land Tax
Report on behalf of the Fund, never showed the lease agreement dated July 28, 2010 as attachment to Koh
Samui Municipality Office which caused the incorrect submission of the property and land tax report, resulting in
Koh Samui Municipality Office being entitled to re-evaluate the backdate property and land tax. Moreover, Koh
Samui Municipality Office has the authority to evaluate the annual charge based on the annual rental fee
mentioned in the lease agreement dated July 28, 2010. Due to the property’s condition remained the same, the
additional amount for annual charge is reasonable. Moreover, the rental fee in the lease agreement dated July
20, 2017 is made freely by the plaintiff which is unreasonable, and the fact that the plaintiff has no right to request
for Property and Land Tax reduction, the assessment of the Property and Land Tax for the year 2013 (Additional
Payment) to year 2017 by Koh Samui Municipality Office and the decision of the Appeal Committee are legal.
Koh Samui Municipality Office is not required to return the paid property and land tax for the year 2013 (additional

payment) to year 2017 and interest to the Fund. The Court Judgement is case dismissed.”

The Fund had filed an appeal against the Central Tax Court’s judgment. Subsequently, on 22
July 2019, the Central Tax Court rendered the judgment of the Court of Appeal for Specialized Cases which

affirmed the Central Tax Court’s judgment, with reasons summarized as follows:

“The valuation of property and land tax for the year 2013 to the year 2017 by the defendant’s
competent officer and the decision of Koh Samui Municipality Mayor are duly. The defendant is not required to
return the property and land tax to the plaintiff. However, it is i illegitimate that the Central Tax Court failed to
render a judgment ordering the return of surcharge overpaid by the plaintiff for the property and land tax of the
year 2014. The defendant is therefore required to return the overpaid surcharge to the plaintiffin accordance with
the complaint. The Judgment shall be affirmed, but the defendant shall return the overpaid surcharge made by
the plaintiff in the payment of property and land tax for the year 2014 in the amount of 80 satang to the plaintiff,
together with 7.5 percent interest per annum accrued from the expiry of the 3-month period until the case

becomes final. The costs at the appellate stage shall be vested with the State.”

The Fund has filed a petition for extension of time to file a Dika appeal and petition for
permission to file a Dika appeal. The Central Tax Court rendered an order allowing the Fund to file a Dika

appeal and a petition for permission to file a Dika appeal within 24 November 2019.

The Fund had paid the Property and Land Tax for the year 2013 (Additional Payment) to the
year 2017 and the surcharge in the amount of 31,457,035 Baht but the Fund had also exercised the right to
file a lawsuit to the Central Tax Court against Koh Samui Municipality Office to return the overpaid Property

and Land Tax in the total amount of 31,026,925 Baht. The reclaimed amount is less than the paid amount
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because the Fund still has to pay the unpaid Property and Land Tax for the year 2017 in the amount of 431,010
Baht to Koh Samui Municipality Office. Therefore, the total amount reclaimed in the lawsuit is 31,026,925 Baht.

Subsequently, the Chairman asked Mr. Vullope Techakasin, Tax Legal Advisor from Siam

City Law Offices Ltd., to give clarifications to the Meeting.

Mr. Vullope Techakasin, Tax Legal Advisor from Siam City Law Offices Ltd., clarified to the
Meeting as follows. The said case is currently in the course of petition for extension of time to file a Dika appeal
and the Management Company is still considering guidelines for further action. He opined that the assessment
of building and land tax was not righteous for the supporting reasons as follows.

1. The tax return filing for tax assessment was complete and correct. It was the mistake made
by Koh Samui Municipality officer who failed to record the details of the lease agreement, and therefore
retroactive assessment of tax could not be done.

2. The tax base should be calculated based on the value for which the property might be
leased. Therefore, the hotel value should be considered based on the occupancy rate and actual utilization,
which would be lower than the rent under the 2010 lease agreement.

3. In 2015, the Fund terminated the lease agreement with the Lessee. Therefore, since tax
year 2015 - 2017, the rent under the 2015 lease agreement could not be included in the assessment. The
annual value should be computed based on the current lease agreement which its rent is suitably deemed as
the true value of the property.

4. For the actual economic conditions since 2010, there were incidents continuously affecting
tourism such as the coup d'état and Samui Airport closure, which resulted in the value for which the property
might have been leased being lower. It was not expedient to assess tax for tax year 2013 - 2017 based on

information in 2010.

The procedure of building and land tax filing specifies that there are two practical methods.
The first method is for the taxpayer to complete the municipality’s tax form and file it with the municipality. The
second method is for the municipal officer to call the taxpayer in to give information and clarifications to the
officer and the officer will fill out the tax form as deemed appropriate. With respect to the Fund’s case, the
Fund reported complete information, but the officer did not mention the lease agreement as, at that time, the
officer would assess the annual value of property as it was a hotel business. Nonetheless, the officer changed
the practice to assess the annual value of property in kind of leased property by drawing a comparison from

the Supreme Court’s judgment in 2016 since the assessed annual value is higher.

Subsequently, Mr. Vullope Techakasin, Tax Legal Advisor, answered the question from Mr.
Anu Wongsarakit, unitholder, that the direction for the appeal of the case at the Dika appeal stage must be to
challenge the Court of Appeal’s judgment by using the existing information and evidence that the inferior court

did not raise for consideration, e.g. closure of the property for repair without a full-year utilization which was
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one of the grounds to reduce tax base. The Supreme Court’s consideration may take approximately one year.
With regard to the effects from the promulgation of the Land and Building Tax Act B.E. 2562, even though the
tax base is higher, the tax calculation rate decreases. According to calculation, it likely results in decrease in
the amount of payable tax. In addition, the tax base under the Land and Building Tax Act B.E. 2562, is
calculated based on the property value according to the appraisal price of the Treasury Department. Therefore,
the officer does not have the authority to exercise their discretion as compared to when the previous law was

in effect. This should be enabling the Fund to conduct clearer tax planning.

The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Wanchai Lertsrijatuporn, volunteer for
shareholders' right protection and proxy from the Thai Investors Association, that the property’s appraisal price,
calculated using the cost approach, based on the market values of the land and building, is approximately 614
million baht, consisting of the land price of approximately 274 million baht and the building and structure price

of approximately 180 million baht.

Mr. Vullope Techakasin, Tax legal Advisor, answered the question from Mr. Suntorn
Raksantiwong, that if the Supreme Court reversed or amended the judgment in favor of the Fund. The best-
case scenario is the Fund would receive a refund of the building and land tax with interest at 7.5 percent per
annum upon the lapsing of the period of three months accrued from the date on which the case becomes final.
To what extent the Supreme Court will rule, and whether the Fund will receive a refund and in what amount,
are subject to the court’s discretion. The question from Mr. Anu Wongsarakit was answered as follows. The
interest involving the tax refund starts being chargeable from the end of the 3-month period from the date of
the final judgment. If Koh Samui Municipality refunded tax to the Fund within the 3-month period from the date

of the final judgment, the Fund would not be entitled to receive interest.
4 The Fund’s Operation and Future Management Plan
4.1  Property Utilization

At present, the Management Company had the temporary lease agreement with Samui Buri

Co., Ltd. (“Lessee”), for a term of three years, with the main conditions summarized below:

Lease Conditions Remarks

Lease Term | 3 years (1 August 2018 to 31 July 2021) The temporary lease term is extended from 1

year to 3 years.

Rental Fee 1% Year: 500,000 Baht per month or The current rental fee is in the amount of

equivalent to 6,000,000 Baht per year; 600,000 Baht per month.
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Lease Conditions

Remarks

2" Year: 600,000 Baht per month or
equivalent to 7,2000,000 Baht per year;

39 Year: 700,000 Baht per month or
equivalent to 8,4000,000 Baht per year;

The rental fee of the 1% year has decreased in

the total amount of 1,200,000 Banht.

The rental fee of the 2™ year is equal to the

current rental fee.

The rental fee of the 3 year is higher than the
current rental fee in the amount of 1,200,000

Baht.

The average rental fee throughout the 3 years
term is equal to the current temporary rental

fee.

Investment
for
Improvement

of Property

The Lessee pays for the investment to
improve the property in the total amount of not

less than 3,000,000 Baht.

If the Lessee invests for the improvement of
property in the amount of less than 3,000,000
Baht, the Lessee must pay the difference to

the Fund in addition to the rental fee.

The Fund will consider and approve the plan
and budget of the improvement and will check

the volume and value of the completed work.

No terms and conditions on the investment for
improvement of property were mentioned in

the former temporary lease agreement.

Termination
of Lease
Agreement
prior to the
Expiration of

Lease Term

If the Fund wishes to lease the property to a
new lessee or sell the property to an
interested buyer, the Fund can terminate the
Lease Agreement prior to the expiration of
Lease Term and the Lessee must deliver the
possession of the leased property and
transfer the license for hotel business
operation and other licenses to the Fund or

to the person determined by the Fund.
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Lease Conditions Remarks
Property and | The Fund and the Lessee will jointly pay According to the former temporary lease
Land Tax the property and land tax. The Lessee agreement, the Fund shall solely be
agrees to pay for 30% and the Fund responsible for all property and land tax.

agrees to pay for 70% of the tax as

assessed by the government.

According to the Unitholders’ Meeting’s resolution approving the Fund to compromise with
the Lessee and to sell the Fund’s property, the Fund made a temporary lease agreement with a term of six
months with the Lessee during the seeking of a buyer. Subsequently, it appears that no offers were made to
purchase the Fund’s property. The Fund then extended the temporary lease agreement for another one year
to seek a new lessee. However, it turns out that the bidder for tenancy of the Fund’s property failed to submit
complete supporting detail and documentation as requested by the Management Company. The Management
Company was unable to consider the said bidder’s offer. Currently, the Management Company still has not
acquired a new lessee. The Management Company therefore considered the matter and renewed the temporary
lease agreement with the Lessee for another three years. In renewing the said lease agreement, the
Management Company took into consideration the directions for investment and operations of a hotel operator,
the Fund’s property condition, current rental rate, and early termination conditions involving the lease
agreement, as detailed above, which gives the Fund an opportunity to accept lease and/or purchase offers for
the property during the term of the agreement. The view is that the renewal of the temporary lease agreement

is beneficial to the Fund.

4.2 Plan for future operations

The Management Company has directions for future operations as follows.

4.2.1 Seeking a buyer

For the sale of the Fund’s property, the market condition and property condition as
of the date of the sale of property must be taken into account as investors will consider the total investment
value in the property. The investors will have to invest in order to exploit the property in accordance with their
objectives, where not only the property value, but also the investment value involving property improvement,
must be considered. The Management discussed with the advisory engineer to calculate the initial investment
value in the improvement of the Fund’s property so that it has enough standard for the operation of hotel chain
business. It appears that the said investment value is approximately 100-130 million baht. Therefore, the Fund’s
trade price must be calculated by deducting the investment value for the property improvement and be mainly
subject to the real estate market condition at the time. For these reasons, the trade price of the Fund’s property
may not be as high as anticipated by the unitholders and Management Company and may be lower than the

replacement value.
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4.2.2 Seeking a new lessee who can offer reasonable returns to the Fund
As the Fund’s property has been deteriorating, but the Fund has no and is unable
to seek investment funds to improve the property, letting out the Fund’s property to a new lessee requires the
condition on which the new lessee improves the property, similar to the condition of the current temporary lease
agreement. However, with respect to the property lease agreement between the Fund and the new lessee, the
Management Company will determine a higher investment value for the property improvement and a longer
lease term than those indicated in the current temporary lease agreement to be in line with the directions for

investment and business operation of the new lessee.

Presently, the Management Company is open for every direction of operation above whether
it is selling or letting out the property on a long-term basis. The Management Company contacted real estate
agents to carry out a process seeking persons interested in purchasing or renting the Fund'’s property. However,
the Management Company has not received any clear and definite offers. The cancellation of the lease
agreement and closure of the property from use may not be an appropriate approach because this action will
incur costs and expenses during the said closure, for example, the cost of hiring security guards, and will cause
the property to deteriorate more quickly. This will result in an increase in investment value for the property
improvement and a decrease in rental price. For these reasons, in the event that the Fund has not been able
to seek a new lessee who accepts the condition of investment for property improvement and agrees to rent
the property on a long-term basis as determined by the Fund, the Management Company is of the view that
allowing the Lessee to rent the property under the arrangements and conditions of the current temporary lease

agreement is likely to be a direction least adversely affecting the Fund.

The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Anu Wongsarakit, unitholder, as follows. The
revenue per available room (RevPar) from the Lessee’s business operation is approximately 1,300-1,500 baht.
With respect to the Lessee’s operating results, the Lessee suffers an operating loss of approximately 2 million
baht per annum. With regard to the inspection of the property improvement in accordance with the condition in
the current temporary lease agreement, the Management Company assigned the advisory engineer to conduct
an inspection to check whether property improvement has actually been carried out and is in accordance with
the investment value determined in the agreement. For other approaches to exploit the property, the
Management Company considered hiring a hotel chain business operator to manage the Fund’s property.
However, the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC Office”) considers a hotel a business,
not a real property. The law relating to property fund management prescribes that a property fund shall exploit
a real property that is a hotel building by letting out the entire hotel to a hotel operator only. Even though
various property funds discussed with the SEC Office to push for a change of this idea, they were not
successful. Although there are no limitations in such case, the Fund has limitations regarding investment funds
for property improvement as the Fund is unable to take out a loan or increase its capital in order to invest in
the property improvement. The Fund therefore cannot take action in that direction. For these reasons, there

are two possible approaches to exploit the Fund’s property as mentioned above. The question from Mr. Suntorn
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Raksantiwong, unitholder, was answered as follows. The Management Company examined the Lessee’s
operating results from the annual financial statements submitted to the Ministry of Commerce and conducted
a random inspection on the occupant register by calculating the Lessee’s total income for the year based on
occupancy data according to the occupant register. The amount of income according to such calculation
corresponds with the amount of income shown in the annual financial statements filed with the Ministry of

Commerce.

The Chairman gave additional clarifications to the Meeting that the Management Company
once received an offer to rent the property from a business operator of the Centara Group affiliate, but the said
offer did not contain conditions that would provide more benefits to the Fund than the terms and conditions of

the current temporary lease agreement.

Mr. Methee Anadirekkul, unitholder, said that even though the Lessee showed good operating
results and had the capacity to pay a higher rental rate than the current rate, the Fund was unable to seek
another lessee and did not have the bargaining power over the Lessee with respect to determination of a higher
rental rate. Subsequently, he asked about the forced sell price of the property at present as he opined that the
amount of the Fund’s expenses and the property trade price should be mainly determined with reference to

the market value of the property instead of the appraisal price thereof.

The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Methee Anadirekkul, unitholder, that the forced
sale price of the property was approximately 200-250 million baht. The appraiser appraised the said price by

calculation based on 35 percent of the appraisal price.

Mr. Teerawat Wongwanich, proxy, requested that the Chairman provide details relating to the
most recent bidder for the property and asked the Management Company to closely monitor the Lessee’s

operating results.

The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Teerawat Wongwanich, proxy, as follows. The
Fund received the most recent offer to purchase the property in 2018 with the purchase price of 550 million
baht. However, on the date prior to the Unitholders’ Meeting in which the bid was to be considered, the bidder
revoked the bid. The Fund received the most recent offer to rent the property in 2018 from an operator of the
Centara Group affiliate offering rent at 600,000 baht per month, the same rate that the Fund receives from the
current Lessee, without accepting the conditions of investment for property improvement and long-term lease

agreement.
The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Anu Wongsarakit, unitholder, regarding the

rent structure under the current temporary lease agreement and guidelines for converting the Fund into a real

estate investment trust (“REIT”), as follows. As the current temporary lease agreement is on a short-term basis,

15/ 21



O Principal’

only fixed rent is determined. If a long-term agreement is entered into in the future, both fixed rent and variable
rent may be determined in accordance with the lessee’s operating results. The advantage of the conversion
from the Fund into REIT is that REIT can take out a loan and increase its capital in order to invest in property
improvement. REIT can also purchase an additional property. If the additional property acquired is located in
the area with a different tourist season from the area in which the current property is located, it will enable
distribution of income. The additional property acquired must not be the same type of property as the main
property of another REIT under management of the same REIT manager. However, there are still limitations
where REIT is required to exploit a real property that is a hotel building by letting out the entire property to a
hotel operator only. With regard to the rules on dividend payment, REIT must pay dividends to trust unitholders

at the rate of no less than 90 percent of the net profit.

Mr. Anu Wongsarakit, unitholder, expressed an additional opinion that as REIT may purchase
an additional property, it should be open to acquiring a property in good condition which can generate more
revenue for REIT. This will result in the ability to pay dividends to the trust unitholders in the future. Therefore,
he asked the Management Company to consider this matter and conduct research on guidelines on conversion

of the Fund into REIT.

Mr. Tuan Phatihatakorn, unitholder, gave his opinion that if the Fund was unable to find a
solution for the best interest of the unitholders, the Fund might have to consider an absolute solution, e.g.
structure demolition and sale of only the Fund’s land, in order to distribute the money from the land sale to the

unitholders.

Mr. Methee Anadirekkul, unitholder, gave his opinion that the Fund should not convert into
REIT or make additional investment. The Fund should solve the problem by letting out the property on a long-

term basis or selling the property, whether it is both land and structure, or land only.

The Chairman said that, presently, the Management Company was open to receive both
offers to purchase and to rent the property. However, there has not been any person interested in purchasing
or renting the Fund’s property. If the Management Company receives a clear and definite offer, it will hold a
Unitholders’ Meeting to further consider the offer to purchase or rent. Subsequently, the question from Mr.
Methee Anadirekkul, unitholder, was answered as follows. The Lessee has not made an offer to enter into a
long-term lease agreement with the Fund. When the current temporary lease agreement is close to expire, the

Management Company will negotiate with the Lessee on this matter.
Mr. Somkiat Saleepattana, unitholder, asked for opinions from major unitholders or their

proxies, regarding the guidelines for investment in the Fund. Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee, legal consultant, said that

expression of an opinion at the meeting was the right of and was subject to each unitholder’'s wish. Additionally,
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the proxies might have been assigned proxy only to attend the meeting but have no power to give an opinion

on the matter in question.

Mr. Somkiat Saleepattana, unitholder, gave his opinion that as the Management Company
was unable to manage the Fund in accordance with its goals, the Management Company should consider

reducing the Fund’s management fee.

The Chairman gave clarifications on the opinion of Mr. Tuan Phatihatakorn, unitholder,
involving the consideration to sell the Fund’s land or let out the Fund’s property on a long-term basis, that the
Management Company was able to carry out a process seeking a buyer or new lessee of the property to enter

into a long-term lease agreement in accordance with the resolution of the previous Unitholders’ Meeting.

The Chairman then said that as no other unitholders expressed their opinions, it shall be
deemed that the Meeting acknowledged the Fund’s operation report and guidelines for future operations as

proposed.

Agenda 4: To acknowledge the financial status, operating result and financial statement for fiscal
year ending on 30 June 2019 which has been audited and given opinion by the auditor

(For Acknowledgement);

The Chairman reported the financial status, the operating result and the financial statements for
fiscal year ending on 30 June 2019 which has been audited and given opinion by the auditor which can be summarized

as follows:

According to the balance sheets, the Fund’s total assets were 547,971,160 Baht, the total
liabilities were 17,078,304 Baht and the net assets were 530,892,856 Baht or equivalent to the asset value per
unit of 6.4117 Baht. Currently, the Fund has the total investment units sold at the year-end in number of
82,800,000 units. According to the profit and loss statements, in 2019, the Fund’s total income was 7,204,286
Baht, net loss from investment was 12,703,897. Moreover, there is an account loss from investment since the
assessed value of property decreased from 601,400,000 baht to 536,800,000 baht, in 2019, calculated
decrease as 64,600,000 baht or 10.74 percent. In 2019, the Fund did not declare dividend and had cash and
cash equivalents at the end of fiscal year at 8,239,320 baht which the Management Company will consider
appropriate operation. For the statement of cashflow, the net cash from operating activities was 1,853,227
Baht, net cash used in financing activities (Dividend paid) was 32,400,000 Baht, net increase in cash and cash
equivalents were 7,027,592 Baht. In addition, on the first day of 2019, Fund’s cash and cash equivalents were

10,092,547 Baht, and at year-end of 2019, Fund’s cash and cash equivalents were 8,239,320 Baht. The details
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are specified in the financial statements for fiscal year ending on 30 June 2019 which was sent to the unitholders

together with the meeting invitation letter.

Then, the Chairman informed the Meeting that, agenda 4 is for acknowledgement, accordingly,

there is no passing of resolution.

Agenda 5: To acknowledge the appointment of the Fund’s auditor and auditing expense for fiscal year

ending on 30 June 2020 (For Acknowledgement)

The Chairman informed the Meeting that the Management Company appointed auditors of
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Company Limited as the auditors of the Fund for fiscal year ending on 30 June

2020 with the details as follows:

Auditor Mr. Sa-Nga Chokenitisawat CPA Registration No. 11251
Mrs. Anothai Leekitwattana CPA Registration No. 3442
Mrs. Anutai Poomsurakul CPA Registration No. 3873

Location 15™ Floor, Bangkok City Tower, 179/74-80 South Sathorn Road, Sathon,
Bangkok 10120

Remuneration 930,000 Baht

Other expenses Actual amount paid

The Chairman additionally clarified to the Meeting that the auditor's current increased
workload due to monthly closing entries caused an increase in the auditor's remuneration. Nonetheless, the
Management Company accepted the suggestion of Mr. Suntorn Raksantiwong, unitholder, regarding the
consideration and selection of another auditor with qualifications as prescribed by the SEC Office, which may

charge remuneration at a lower rate than the current auditor in order to reduce the Fund’s expenses.

Then, the Chairman informed the Meeting that, agenda 5 is for acknowledgement, accordingly,

there is no passing of resolution.

Agenda 6: To consider other business (if any).

The Chairman answered the question from Mrs. Laksunee Siripathummat, unitholder, as
follows. The personnel of the company offering the Fund’s investment units for sale to the unitholders are not
the Fund’s current management team. The Management Company’s fee is calculated based on the Fund'’s net
property value. If the Fund’s net property value decreases, it naturally results in a decrease in the Management

Company’s fee. The Chairman accepted the suggestion on reduction of the Fund’s expenses, e.g. the
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Management Company’s management fee and auditor’'s remuneration, so that it is consistent with the Fund’s
financial standing. With respect to publicity of the previous real property bidding, the Management Company
assigned CBRE (Thailand) Co. Ltd. to act as agent and bid manager. CBRE (Thailand) Co. Ltd. reached out
to domestic and international investors. Moreover, the Management Company publicized it on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand’s official website, Management Company’s website and by newspaper announcements.
At present, the Management Company publicizes the sale and letting of the property through several real estate
agencies such as CBRE (Thailand) Co. Ltd., Jones Lang LaSalle (Thailand) Ltd. and Knight Frank Chartered

(Thailand) Co. Ltd., to investors interested in purchasing or renting the Fund’s property.

Mr. Somkiat Saleepattana, unitholder, commented that the Fund’s property lease agreement
should contain a rent structure consisting of fixed rent and variable rent. The Chairman accepted the suggestion

for further consideration.

Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee, Legal Advisor, answered the question from Mr. Somkiat Saleepattana,
unitholder, that at this time, there were a total of 106 unitholders attending this Meeting in person and by proxy,

representing a total of 36,043,485 investment units, or 43.5308 percent.

Mr. Wanchai Lertsrijatuporn, proxy from the Thai Investors Association, gave his opinion to
the Meeting that the opinions, questions and suggestions of the unitholders at this Meeting shall be accurately
and completely recorded, together with the names of the unitholders who raised those questions or suggestions.
He was of the view that the unitholders’ opinions were useful and might be used in the following Unitholders’
Meeting. Then, the Chairman clarified to the Meeting as follows. According to the standard for the preparation
of minutes of unitholders’ meeting, questions and suggestions of the unitholders, together with other details,
must be accurately and completely recorded, regardless of whether the unitholders attend the meeting in person
or by proxy. The said minutes of unitholders’ meeting will be posted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s

website within 14 days from the date of the unitholders’ meeting.

The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Wanchai Lertsrijatuporn, proxy from the Thai
Investors Association, as follows. The increase (decrease) in account payable from related parties of 1,107,028
baht in the cash flow statement is the amount received by the Fund from the insurance company as the hotel
suffered damage from floods. The hotel carried out repair of the damaged portion and advanced the costs, and

later received reimbursement from the insurance company.

The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Anu Wongsarakit, unitholder, as follows. The
costs involving the legal consultant and lawyer are divided into two portions: legal advisory fees included in the
regular costs as the Fund is required to make available a legal consultant, and lawyer’s fees specifically for
legal cases. If the Fund considers it and views that the filing of a Dika appeal to challenge the assessment of

house and land tax by Koh Samui Municipality will be beneficial to the Fund, the Fund will incur the lawyer’s
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fees. The amount of lawyer’s fee for filing the Dika appeal will be lower than the amount of lawyer’s fees for

litigation at the court of first instance stage and appellate stage.

Mr. Thiti Kumnerddee, legal consultant, answered the question from Mr. Teerapol
Veerapanchai, unitholder, that according to new house and land tax rates, the Fund must pay tax at the rates
between 0.3-0.5 percent of the appraisal value. The said tax rates are on the sliding scale basis and the
appraisal price is appraised by the Treasury Department. Subsequently, the Chairman answered the question
from Mr. Teerapol Veerapanchai, unitholder, as follows. Presently, the Treasure Department appraised the land
price (particularly land plots with title deeds), together with building and structure, at 83,231,906 baht. This
price does not include the price of land with Nor Sor 3 Gor certificate. The Management Company does not

have the details on this subject but estimates the total price of no more than 120 million baht.

Mrs. Laksunee Siripathummat, unitholder, expressed her opinion that the increase in house
and land tax chargeable to the Fund was due to failure of the Management Company which pushed the said
tax burden on to the Lessee. The Chairman said that he was not involved in the negotiation of the lease
agreement in 2010 so he did not know the true cause for determining that the Lessee shall bear the house
and land tax. However, he assumed that the determination of that contractual clause might have been to enable

the Fund to clearly calculate returns to be paid to the unitholders.

The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Anu Wongsarakit, unitholder, that the Fund’s
loss was divided into two categories: 1) operating loss and 2) loss from a valuation of property. At present, the
Fund is suffering loss from decrease in the appraisal price. If rent increases, the appraisal price will also
increase, resulting in decrease in loss suffered by the Fund. Moreover, loss from the valuation of property

affects net profit calculation for the purpose of dividend payment to the unitholders.

The Chairman answered the question from Mr. Tara Chonpranee, unitholder, that, currently,

the Management Company did not manage any REIT or property fund investing in hotels other than this Fund.

Mr. Tara Chonpranee, unitholder, suggested that the Management Company consider
converting the Fund into REIT. The Chairman accepted the said suggestion for further consideration and
clarified to the Meeting that conversion of a property fund into REIT might be carried out only upon acceptance
of the conversion offer by both the transferring fund (transferor) and receiving trust (transferee). Upon
conversion, the holders of investment units in the property fund will become new unitholders in REIT, and the

unitholders will receive newly issued trust units from REIT, not cash.

The Chairman asked that whether there were any Unitholders to have any further questions

or not.
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There was no additional inquiry of any Unitholder, and no other business to be considered,

therefore, the Chairman declared the Meeting closed at approximately 11.35 a.m.

[a"- =2 2
(i

(Mr. Suttipan Kreemaha)

Chairman of the Meeting
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Unitholders of Samui Buri Property Fund

My opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements of Samui Buri Property Fund (“the Fund”) present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at 30 June 2020, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards
(TFRSs).

What | have audited
The Fund'’s financial statements comprise:

- the balance sheet as at 30 June 2020;

« the details of investments as at 30 June 2020;

« the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

significant financial information and ratios for the year then ended; and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of my report. | am independent of the Fund in accordance with the
Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of his Majesty the King's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my
audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in
my audit of the financial statements of the current period. | determine one key audit matter:
valuation of investment in properties. These matter was addressed in the context of my audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.
15th Floor Bangkok City Tower, 179/74-80 South Sathorn Road, Bangkok 10120, Thailand
T: +66 (0) 2844 1000 F: +66 (0) 2286 5050, www.pwc.com/th



Valuation of investment in properties

Refer to significant accounting policies no. 3.3
and notes to financial statements no. 9, the fair
value of investment properties were carried at
Baht 399 million as at 30 June 2020 with
urrealised loss o inveslimenls of Bahil 137.8
million.

The investment properties comprises of the land,
buildings (except sport club), public utilities,
furniture and equipment for hotel business.

Valuations of investment properties were carried out
by independent appraiser.

There were significant judgements and estimates
to be made in relation to the valuation of investment
properties. The valuations was based on Income

Approach.

The most significant judgements and estimates
affecting all the valuations of investment properties
include estimated rental income, discount rate,
which was determined from business type, the
location of project, ability to generate income,
competitive market and risk-free return rate.
The appraiser applied discounted cash flow for
valued asset based on yield rate of government
bond plus market, operational, and liquidity risk.

The unrealised loss was incurred from lower
estimated rental income, which was unfavourably
reflected from lower demand of customers and
fixed costs.

The significant estimation could result in material
effect to investment in properties at fair value,
which is why | have given specific audit focus
and attention to this area.

All investment properties are appraised by an
independent valuer, who hold a recognised
relevant professional qualification by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and has
recent experience in lhe segiment of the
investment properties valued.

| assessed the competence, independence
and objectivity and verified their qualifications.

| obtained the valuation reports and agreed fair
value in valuation report to accounting record.
| discussed directly with external valuer and
challenged on the appropriateness of the
methodology and assumptions used. The property
information in the valuation was tested by
tracing a sample of data inputs underpinning
the valuation for properties, including rental
income and related cost/ expenses with lease
agreement of Mercure Samui Buri Resort.
|, therefore, held a discussion with the Fund's
management to ensure the appropriateness,
completeness and correctness of data input by
the valuer.

In addition, | challenged the unfavourable
movements in the valuation and obtained the
explanations and related reference of supporting
evidences from independent valuer.

From procedures mentioned above, | found
that the management's significant judgements
and estimates were appropriated in an acceptable
range.
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Other information

The Fund’s management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and my
auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date of
this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | will not express
any forn ol assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am
required to communicate the matter to the Fund’s management.

Responsibilities of the Fund’s management for the financial statements

The Fund's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with TFRSs, and for such internal control as the Fund's management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Fund’'s management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Fund’s management either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Fund’s management is responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher han for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal conlrol.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Fund’s management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Fund’'s management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Fund's management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide the Fund’'s management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Fund’s management, | determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine
that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

SWK bl

Sa-nga Chokenitisawat

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 11251
Bangkok

27 August 2020



Samui Buri Property Fund
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2020

Assets

Investment in properties at fair value
(at cost Baht 828,000,000)

Cash and cash equivalents

Rental receivable and accrued rental income, net

Other receivable

Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Accrued expenses

Other payable

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Net assets:

Capital received from unitholders
(82,800,000 units, Baht 10 each)

Deficits

Net assets

Net assets value per unit (Baht)

Number of units outstanding at the end of the year (units)

2020 2019

Notes Baht Baht
9 399,000,000 536,800,000
10 6,525,675 8,239,320
11 1,200,000 1,100,000
1,795,988 1,661,000

144,782 148,298

80,825 22,542

408,747,170 547,971,160

14 17,271,228 15,964,671
- 1,107,028

- 6,605

17,271,223 17,078,304
391,475,947 530,892,856

12 828,000,000 828,000,000
12 (436,524,053)  (297,107,144)

391,475,947 530,892,856
4.7279 6.4117
82,800,000 82,800,000

The notes to financial statements from pages 11 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements.




‘SjusWale)S [elouBUly asay) jo Jed [eibajul ue ale oz 0} || sebed woly sjuswalels [eloueUl 0] SS10U ay |

00l 00l 000'008°¢ES 0C0'000°66¢ 000°000'828 000°000°828 sanadoud ut Juswysanul [ejo|
00l 00l 000°'008'¢ES 0C0'000°66¢ 000°000'828 000'000°828 ssaulsng [sj0y
10} eale Bupped pue ‘woal Bujuip ‘jood Bulwwims
‘saniioe) yim ‘wbs 98'2//'G1 jo eale [ejo} ‘sbuipling (g
‘les /Z-0-€1 Jo eale B0} ‘puel jo sjoid G (1
sbuip|ing pue pueT
(6 @10N) saipadoud ui Juswysanu|
% % yegq ueg yeg jyeg
6102 0eoz 6L02 0202 6102 0zoz
jususaAul jo abejuasiag anjeaA Je4 1509 Jusunsaaul yo adA g

0202 @unf Qg je sy
sjuswWlsSaAU| jo spieyaq
pung Auadoid ung inwesg



Samui Buri Property Fund
Statement of Income
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019

Notes Baht Baht
Investment income
Rental income 9 7,200,000 7,200,000
Interest income 3,723 4,286
Total income 7,203,723 7,204,286
Expenses
Management fee 13, 14 3,087,864 3,696,567
Trustee fee 13 617,573 740,942
Registrar fee 13, 14 514,644 616,095
Professional fee 1,855,251 1,777,913
Doubtful debt expense 11 1,800,000 -
Other expenses 945,300 13,076,666
Total expenses 8,820,632 19,908,183
Net investment (expenses) (1,616,909) (12,703,897)
Net (loss) from investments
Net unrealised (loss) from investments 9 (137,800,000) (64,600,000)
Total net (loss) from investments (137,800,000) (64,600,000)
Net (decrease) in net assets from operations (139,416,809) (77,303,897)

The notes to financial statements from pages 11 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019
Note Baht Baht
(Decrease) in net assets from operations
during the year
Net investment (expenses) (1,616,809) (12,703,897)
Net (loss) from investment 9 (137,800,000) (64,600,000)

Net (decrease) in net assets from operations

(Decrease) in net assets during the year
Net assets at the beginning of the year

Net assets at the end of the year

(139,416,909)

(77,303,897)

(139,416,909)
530,892,856

(77,303,897)
608,196,753

391,475,947

530,892,856

The notes to financial statements from pages 11 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements.




Samui Buri Property Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019
Note Baht Baht
Cash flows from operating activities
Net (decrease) in net assets from operations (139,416,909) (77,303,897)
Adjustments to reconcile net increase (decrease)
in net assets from operations to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Interest income (3,723) (4,286)
Net unrealised loss from investment 9 137,800,000 64,600,000
Doubtful debt expense 11 1,800,000 -
(Increase) in rental receivable and accrued rental income (1,900,000) (1,100,000)
(Increase) in other receivable (134,988) (1,661,000)
Decrease in prepaid expenses 3,516 10,593
(Increase) decrease in other assets (58,510) 12,769
Increase in accrued expenses 1,308,552 12,479,926
(Decrease) increase in other payable (1,107,028) 1,107,028
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities (6,605) 759
Cash flows from operating activities (1,717,695) (1,858,108)
Cash received from interest income 3,950 4,881
Net cash used in operating activities (1,713,745) (1,853,227)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,713,745) (1,8563,227)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,239,320 10,092,547
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,525,575 8,239,320

The notes to financial statements from pages 11 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1 General information

Samui Buri Property Fund (“the Fund”) was registered on 22 July 2010 with indefinite expiration
date. The purpose of the Fund is to raise funds from the investors to invest in properties which
consist of land, buildings (except sport club), with facilities, swimming pool, dining room, and
parking area for hotel business.

As at 30 June 2020, the major unitholder is Government Savings Bank, holding 24.15% of total
authorised units.

Principal Asset Management Company Limited is the Fund’'s Management Company (“the Management
Company"”). Citibank N.A. has been appointed as the Fund's [rustee.

On 22 April 2019, the Management Company had informed the Securities and Exchange Commission to
change its name from “CIMB Principal Asset Management Company Limited” to “Principal Asset
Management Company Limited”.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by authorised manager of the Management Company
on 27 August 2020.

2 Significant events during the current period

The outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, it has resulted
in adverse effects on operating results for the year ended 30 June 2020 particularly on the rental
businesses.

The adverse effects from COVID-19 outbreak may lead to early termination, breach or renewal of
certain existing lease contracts as well as affect new contract signing, and rental income in the
coming periods. The Fund’'s management is now paying close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 outbreak situation and its impact on the leasing market, performing relevant
assessments and taking proactive measures for remediation.

3 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below:;

3.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have heen prepared in accordance with Thai generally accepted
accounting principles under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, being those Thai Financial Reporting
Standards issued under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547, and the financial reporting
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commissicn. In addition, the financial statements
have been prepared under the basis and format as required by the Thai Accounting Standard
No. 106 “Accounting for Investment Companies”. The primary financial statements (i.e. balance
sheet, the details of investments, statement of income, statement of changes in net assets,
statement of cash flows and significant financial information and ratios) are prepared in the full
format as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

3

Accounting policies (Cont'd)

3.1

3.2

3.3

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai generally accepted accounting
principles requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

An English language version of the financial statements has heen prepared from the statutory
financial statements that are in the Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in
interpretation between the two languages, the Thai language statutory financial statements
shall prevail.

Revised accounting standards, revised financial reporting standards, and related
interpretations

The Fund has adopted revised financial reporting standards that are effective for
accounting periods beginning or after 1 January 2019 and are relevant to the Fund. These
revised standards do not have a significant impact on the Fund.

The Fund has not adopted new and revised financial reporting standards that are effective for
accounting periods beginning or after 1 January 2020. The management of the Management
Company is currently assessing the impact of initial adoption of these standards.

The Fund has not adopted accounting guidance for Property Fund, Real Estate
Investment Trust, Infrastructure Fund and Infrastructure Trust which was endorsed by the
Securities and Exchange Commission that are effective for accounting periods beginning or
after 1 January 2020.

Investment in properties

Investment in properties consist of land, building (excluding sport club) with facilities, swimming
pool, dining room, and parking area for hotel business which held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and not used in the ordinary business of the fund.

Investment in properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs and borrowing
cost.

Investment in properties are subsequently measured at fair value, with change in fair value
under fair value model being reconised in profit or loss.

The fund should be recognised expense after initially measured as assets when it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the fund.

The Management Company measured their fair value as at first balance sheet date at the
acquisition cost of the properties. At the subsequent balance sheet dates, they are presented at
fair value which is based on appraisal value by independent valuers approved by the Securities
and Exchange Commission. The Management Company will conduct appraisal of properties
every two years from the date of the appraisal for purchase or lease of the properties and will
conduct a review of appraisal every year after the date of the latest appraisal. The Management
Company will not appoint any appraiser to appraise the property or leased property for more
than 2 consecutive times.
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

3

Accounting policies (Cont'd)

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes deposits held at call, short-term highly liquid investments
with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are not used as
collaterals.

Leases

Rental income under operaling leases (nel of any incenlives given o lessees) is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental receivable

Rental receivable is carried at the original invoice amount and subsequently measured at the
remaining amount less any allowance for doubtful accounts based on a review of all outstanding
amounts at the year end. The amount of the allowance is the difference between the carrying
amount of the rental receivable and the amount expected to be collectible. Bad debt are
written-off during the year in which they are identified and recognised in statement of income
as the Fund's expenses.

Revenues and expenses recognition

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in the statement of income on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Other income are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant transactions.

Expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

Income taxes

The Fund is exempted from Thailand corporate income tax. No provision for corporate income
tax has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as board of directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

4

Financial risk management

4.1

4.2

Financial risk factors

The Fund exposes to a variety of financial risks: interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Fund’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks fo minimise potential adverse effects on the Fund's financial
performance.

Interest rate risk

The Fund has interest rate risk from borrowings and debentures at fixed and floating
interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties might not discharge their obligation causing the
Fund to incur a financial loss. Credit risk arises from risk in the collectability of lease
rental from counterparties. The Fund have a concentration of credit risk with respect to an
account receivable as it has only one customer. The carrying amount of financial assets
as recorded in balance sheet represents the Fund’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Fund manages sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

Fair value estimation

The following table presents the financial assets that are measured at fair value,

excluding where its fair value is approximating the carrying amount as at 30 June 2020 and
2019 are as following:

2020 2019

Level 3 Level 3

Baht Baht

Investment in properties 399,000,000 536,800,000
Total 399,000,000 536,800,000

Fair values are categorised into hierarchy based on input used as follows:

Level 1 : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

Level 3 : Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

4

Financial risk management (Cont'd)

4.2  Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
Transfer between fair value hierarchy
During the year, there was no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
Valuation processes

The Management Company arranges the valuation of Investment In propertles by Independent
professionally qualified valuer (“independent valuer’) who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the segment of the investment
properties valued. The independent valuer reports directly to the Management Company.
For financial reporting purpose, the Management Company reviews the valuation
performed by the independent valuer. Review of valuation process and result is held
between the Management Company and the Trustee which will evaluate in each
accounting period, in line with the Fund’s reporting dates.

The main information that the appraiser used for fair value assessment Level 3 such as
discount rate was determined from business type, the location of project, generated cash
flow, competitive market and risk-free return rate. The appraiser applied 12% of discounted
cash flow for valued asset based on yield rate of government bond plus market risk,
operational risk, and liquidity risk.

Changes in fair value are analysed at each reporting date by the Management Company
and the Trustee. As part of this review, the Management Company presents valuation
assumption of the independent valuer to explain the reasons for changes in fair value.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

Estimated and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factor, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Fair value of investment in properties

The fair value of investment in properties that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using discounted expected future cash flows received from investment in properties by the
appropriate discount rate which reflect related risks. The Fund engages independent appraiser
to assess the fair value of properties.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Management Company considers an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect impairment
of account receivable relating to estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers to
make required payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts is significantly impacted by the
Management Company’s assessment of future cash flows, such assessment being based on
consideration of historical collection experience, known and identified instances of default and
consideration of market trends.
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

6 Capital risk management

The Fund's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for unitholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Fund may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to unitholders, return capital to unitholders, issue new units or sell assets to reduce debt (if any).

7 Dividend payment policy

Regulations, policy and criteria for paying dividends to unitholders are as follows:

1) If the Fund has net profit in each year, the Fund shall pay dividend to unitholders at the
rate of no less than 90 percent of the adjusted net profit for the year ended. The adjusted
net profit means the net profit that deducts unrealised gain from appraisal or reviewed
appraisal of real estate or leasehold rights to real estate including other adjustments to
align with cash status of the Fund according to the guideline of Securities and Exchange
Commission.

2)  If the Fund has accumulated profits, the Fund may pay dividend to unitholders out of the
accumulated profits provided that dividend payment under (1) must not cause increase in
its deficit in the period which dividend is paid.

In considering the payment of dividends, if the value of interim dividend per unit to be paid is lower

than or equal to Baht 0.10. The Fund reserves the right not to pay dividend at that time and to
bring such dividend forward for payment together with the year end dividend payment.

8 Segment information

The Fund operates in business which is the investment in properties and the business is only
operated in Thailand. Income and expenses from this segment are the same amount with the
statement of income. Therefore, the presentation of segment information is not necessary.

9 Investment in properties at fair value

2020 2019

Baht Baht

Investment in properties at the beginning of the year 536,800,000 601,400,000
Net unrealised (loss) from the revaluation

of investment at fair value (137,800,000) (64,600,000)

Investment in properties at the end of the year 399,000,000 _ 536,800,000

On 28 July 2010, the Fund invested in properties, the Mercure Samui Buri Resort sized of 88 rooms,
consisted of 1) 5 plots of land, total area is 13-0-27 rai, 2) buildings, total area is 15,772.86 sgm.
close to the river with beach width of 6.5 metre with facilities, swimming pool, dining room and
parking area for hotel business. The land and building are located at 26/24, Soi Wat Nha Pra
Lan, Tambon Mae Nam, Amphur Koh Samui, Surat Thani.
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

9

Investment in properties at fair value (Cont'd)

Amounts recognised in profit and loss that are related to investment in properties for the year
ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are follows:

2020 2019
Rental income 7,200,000 7,200,000
Direct operation expense that did not generate rental income 277,409 416,083

The Fund has an operating lease agreement in respect of Commercial Real Estate that consists
of land, building (excluding sport club) with facilities, swimming pool, dining room, and parking
area for hotel business. The term of the agreement is initially 3 years starting from 1 August
2018 onward. As at 30 June 2020, future minimum rental income to be generated under this
operating lease is as follows.

In Million Baht
Due within 1 year 8.30
Due within 2 years - 3 years 0.70

The Fund hired an independent appraiser, Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd., to appraise its
investment in properties by using the Income Approach derived from cumulative of present value
of net income based on the period of 10 years and its present value of such assets at the end of
year 10, report dated 15 May 2020. The valuation technique used significant unobservable
inputs such that the Fund classified the fair value measurement as Level 3 of fair value hierarchy
according to TFRS13 Fair value measurement.

As at 30 June 2020, the Fund adjusted investment in properties to fair value of Baht 399 million
(2019 : Baht 536.8 million) and recognised net unrealised loss from investment in the statement
of income for the year ended 30 June 2020 at Baht 137.8 million (2019 : unrealised loss of Baht
64.6 million).

Sensitivity analysis for each significant assumptions

Impact on
fair value
increase/

(decrease)
2020
Million Baht
Discount rate
Discount rate, decrease of 0.50 percent 14.60
Discount rate, increase of 0.50 percent (14.00)
Capitalisation rate
Capitalisation rate, decrease of 0.50 percent 12.00
Capitalisation rate, increase of 0.50 percent (10.80)
Rental growth rate
Rental growth rate, decrease of 0.50 percent (11.20)
Rental growth rate, increase of 0.50 percent 11.40
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Samui Buri Property Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Principal Interest rate per annum
2020 2019 2020 2019
Baht Baht % %
Deposits in hank saving account
- Citibank N.A. 6,525,575 8,239,320 0.05 0.05

Total cash and cash equivalents 6,525,575 8,239,320

11 Rental receivable and accrued rental income, net

2020 2019

Baht Baht
Rental receivable 1,800,000 -
Less Allowance for doubtful account (1,800,000) "
Rental receivable, net - -
Accrued rental income 1,200,000 1,100,000
Total rental receivable and accrued rental income, net 1,200,000 1,100,000

12 Unitholders’ equity

As of 30 June 2020 and 2019, there are 82,800,000 units of Baht 10 par value registered, issued and

paid-up.
2020 2019
Number of Number of
units Baht units Baht

Units registered

Issued and paid-up 82,800,000 828,000,000 82,800,000 828,000,000
Capital received from

unitholders
Beginning balance for the year 82,800,000 828,000,000 82,800,000 828,000,000

Issue of units - - = =
Ending balance for the year 82,800,000 828,000,000 82,800,000 828,000,000

Movements in deficits for the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019

Baht Baht

Beginning balance (297,107,144)  (219,803,247)
Less Netinvestment (expenses) (1,616,909) (12,703,897)
Net (loss) from investments (137,800,000) (64,600,000)
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14

Fees

The management fee, trustee fee, and registrar fee are calculated as follows:
Management fee

The Management Company is entitled to receive a monthly management fee from the Fund at a
rate not exceeding 1.00% per annum (exclusive of value added tax, specific business tax or any
other similar tax) of the net assets value of the Fund as calculated by the Management Company
and verified by the Trustee

Trustee fee

The Trustee is entitled to receive a monthly remuneration at a rate not exceeding 0.50% per annum
(exclusive of value added tax, specific business tax or any other similar tax) of the net assets
value of the Fund as calculated by the Management Company and verified by the Trustee. The foregoing
does not include other expenses as actually incurred such as the expenses for the inspection of
the Fund's assets.

Registrar fee

The Registrar fee shall be at a rate not exceeding 0.10% per annum (exclusive of value added tax,
specific business tax or any other similar tax) of the net assets value of the Fund as calculated by
the Management Company and verified by the Trustee.

Related party transactions

Enterprises and individuals that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control,
or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the Fund, including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Fund. Associates and individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Fund that gives them
significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and
officers of the Fund and close members of the family of these individuals and companies
associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Types of relationship of related company are as follows:

Name of company Type of relationship

Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd. The Fund’s Management Company and Registrar
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Related party transactions (Cont'd)

The following significant transactions were carried out with related party:

Significant income and expenses for the years then ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

2020 2019
Baht Baht
Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Management fee 3,087,864 3,696,567
Registrar fee 514,644 616,095
Balances with related party as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 were as follows:
2020 2019
Baht Baht
Principal Asset Management Co., Lid.
Accrued management fee 627,517 280,333
Accrued registrar fee 104,586 46,722

Lawsuit

On 24 April 2017, the Fund received the notice from the Koh Samui City Municipality to pay
additional property tax from 2013 to 2017, thereafter the Fund appealed to the Koh Samui City
Municipality for the property tax re-assessment on 8 May 2017 and also informed this matter to
unitholders in the Unitholders’ Meeting no. 1/2017.

On 10 August 2017, the Fund received the final consideration from the Koh Samui City Municipality to
pay the additional taxes in the total amount of Baht 31,457,935. Therefore, the Fund had paid such
taxes to the Koh Samui City Municipality on 31 August 2017 and recognised to statement of income
for the year ended 30 June 2018,

On 18 August 2017, the Fund had appointed Siam City Law Offices Limited to launch the civil
lawsuit against the Koh Samui City Municipality with the Central Tax Court as a Black Case No.
Por 182/2017 on 8 September 2017 for claiming of the revocation of the property tax re-assessment
including refund the taxes’ payment from the Koh Samui Citi Municipality.

On 22 July 2019, the Central Tax Court dismissed the case that the Fund claimed the
revocation of the property tax re-assessment including refund the taxes' payment from the Koh
Samui Citi Municipality as a Black Case No. Por. 182/2017 and a Red Case No. Por. 77/2018.
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Attachment 3

How to register and authorize proxy for Unitholders’ Meeting of
Samui Buri Property Fund
Wednesday October 28, 2020 at 9.30 AM at Surasak 1 Room, 11*" Floor
Eastin Grand Hotel Sathorn Bangkok
33/1 South Sathorn Road, Yannawa Subdistrict, Sathorn District, Bangkok 10120

1. Registration

Unitholders or proxy can register and submit documents or evidences to be verified at the
meeting from 8.00 AM of Wednesday October 28, 2020 onwards.

2. Attending the meeting in person

As an individual
Show the Unitholder’s valid national or governmental ID card or ID cards issued by the
government or passport.

As a juristic entity

The juristic entity Unitholder must authorize the proxy to attend the meeting and vote in
accordance with the Proxy form as attached.

3. Authorization of proxy

The Unitholder must authorize only one proxy to attend the meeting and vote in
accordance with the Proxy form as attached.

For convenience, please submit the Proxy form and documents or evidences to the
Company at least 1 day before the meeting and make sure to fill in all required
information and affix appropriate signatures. Should there be any corrections of
important information, the Unitholder must sign their name at every correction. The
proxy must be affixed with the duty stamp of Baht 20. The Management Company has
already arranged for a return envelope for the Unitholder.

Required documents for proxy authorization

(1) If the grantor is an individual, the grantor shall submit the following documents:
The Proxy form signed by the grantor.
Copy of the grantor’s valid national or governmental ID card or ID cards issued by the
government or passport (if the grantor is a foreigner) affixed with signature to certify the
true copy by the grantor.
Copy of the proxy’s valid national or governmental ID card or ID cards issued by the
government or passport (if the proxy is a foreigner) affixed with signature to certify the
true copy by the proxy.
The proxy must show valid national or governmental ID card or ID cards issued by the
government or passport (if the proxy is a foreigner) to register.
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Attachment 3

(2) If the grantor is a juristic entity, the grantor shall submit the following documents:
The Proxy form signed by the authorized representative(s) who act on behalf of the juristic
entity according to the juristic entity certificate along with the seal (if applicable).
Copy of the authorized representative’s valid national or governmental ID card or ID cards
issued by the government or passport (if the authorized representative(s) of a juristic
person is a foreigner) affixed with signature(s) to certify the true copy by the authorized
representative(s).
Inthe case where the grantor is a juristic entity registered in Thailand, a copy of the juristic
entity certificate issued within 3 months by the Department of Business Development,
Ministry of Commerce, and affixed with signature(s) of the authorized representative(s)
to certify the true copy together with the seal of a juristic entity be affixed (if any).
In the case where the grantor is a foreign juristic entity, a copy of the juristic entity
certificate specifying the authority of its representative(s), issued by a governmental unit
of the country where a juristic entity is located, within 3 months and affixed with
signature(s) of the authorized representative(s) to certify the true copy.
In the case of foreign juristic entity, non-English documents must have an English
translation attached when submitted and the authorized representative(s) who act on
behalf of the juristic entity must sign and certify the correctness of the translation.
Copy of the proxy’s valid national or governmental ID card or ID cards issued by the
government or passport (if the proxy is a foreigner) affixed with signature to certify the
true copy by the proxy.
The proxy must show valid national or governmental ID card or ID cards issued by the
government or passport (if the proxy is a foreigner) to register.
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Attachment 4.

NUIRANALRUNE
PROXY
oA
LUEIUN
Written at
o A d
AUN [J21a) ) W.A.
Date Month Year
v v % a
0 AINEIN DELIULALN DUU
I/We Residing at Street
AR/ BUND/AUR Jaudn swa l pwendel
Tambol/Khwaeng Amphur/Khet Province Postal Code

v v
o

O Juffiembeamuaes nesusnadamisaning ayetfd (SBPF) Tastiewiaawmusiuauis@usy idag
being a Unit Holder of Samui Buri Property Fund (SBPF) holding a total amount of units,
uaraanidevasaziuulfivinny LEN
and being entitled to the voting rights in total of vote(s).
© saneugunsli 21 3 egfiuani nuu
Hereby appoint years, residing at Street
FNLIA/WNN BND/LUR i o lalswelel
Tambol/Khwaeng Amphur/Khet Province Postal Code

A v o
|:| NIRHANNITNDINY

Or the fund manager

wegvanus i eny 57 8 egfiueail 99/399 nuu
Mr. Suttipan Kreemaha age years, residing at Street
AIUA/MIN  WUNED UGS WizANMIRAg  Aaudn aynssng o 1 owetlel 10290
Tambol/Khwaeng Amphur/Khet Province Postal Code

dufuniaesdiwiduiednssguansiyfteniaamunamumnadarisaning ayeis dseandl 2563 ludun 28 namn 2563

1981 09.30 1. 0 evlszgNaqaAnm 1 G111 Teausn@aRAU WNTUS 49 NPUNN 1827 33/1 DUUAIMNTH WINEUI LWAAINT NFINN

10120 vizaNaritaaullludu 1nan uazan1unausng

to be my/our Proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders on 28 October 2020 at 09.30 hrs.

at Surasak 1 Conference Room, Floor 11, Eastin Grand Hotel Sathorn Bangkok at No. 33/1 South Sathorn Road, Yannawa, Sathorn,

Bangkok 10120, or any adjourment at any date, time and place thereof.

v v

v v o Y Vo o al ¥ v :/j a o Al
e°]J’W‘IL'ﬂ’]"IJ@N@UQHWZIMNNTUNQUQHVK@@TWLZQEI\?@\W]ZLLN'L&LW]H‘}J’]WL'ﬂ’?luﬂ’]ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ‘:iﬁmﬂﬁ AN

I/We hereby authorize the Proxy to vote on my/our behalf at the meeting as follows:

(1) 5N 1 Baddszauuadlindssgunsiu (\iWansu)

Agenda 1: Matters to be informed by the chairman to the Meeting (For Acknowledgement)
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2) q’l‘ixﬁ 2:

Agenda 2 :

(3) 91557 3 :
Agenda 3:

(4) q’l'a‘xﬁ 4:

Agenda 4 :

(5) q’lfizﬁ 5:

Agenda 5:

(6) 97 6:
Agenda 6:

FU5R91EUNNTUSTTNANTYET AN UILRINULRINDINUTIN Uszanil 2562 (1NaNaTun)
To certify the minutes of the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Unitholders of the Fund (For Consideration)

O (n) WiFuneudunzidnsiatsounuazasudunuiinnidnlannilsznisaunmiuang

(a) To grant my/our Proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as he/ she deems appropriate in all respects.

o

0 @) Iﬁtﬁumu’ium@@ﬂLﬁmmmuuummmmﬂi:mﬁ“ﬂ@ﬁﬂwﬁﬁmﬁ
(b) To grant my/our Proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:
] $useq O Tdfusas O] <meanides
Approve Disapprove Abstain

5UNTIUFIEIUNITAN Lﬁumwmnmvguiwu,azu,u'amamsé’mminmvgumﬂuamﬂm (Lﬁ’ﬂ‘ﬂi’l‘l.l)

To acknowledge the report on the Fund’s operation and future management of the Fund (For Acknowledgement)

2

FUNTIUFIULNTRY HANTANEUNULBINBINUTIN UAzsuNTRudmFLTlTTaugn o Ui 30 Nguiau 2563

AdunsmsIagaLLazLARIAMNITiuAINaaLTyTuas (\Wansw)

To acknowledge the financial status and the performance of the Fund and the financial statement for
the accounting year ending on 30 June 2020 as audited and opined by the auditor (For Acknowledgement)

2
o o

NasanFunsIuNIsuAIAERaLdraInamusInuasAt ldaelunsaautinyd dusuilinddugn
™M UN 30 Nu1au 2564 (1NaNsIL)

To acknowledge the appointment of the Fund’s auditors and audit fees and expenses for the accounting year
ending on 30 June 2021 (For Acknowledgement)

iaiasndaiguanuInIensdisEAiIAsALaT Tl uaN SIS WARUANTIGId AU (WaRansII)

To consider the proposal on payment process of outstanding rental fees and lease of assets as proposed
by the Lessee (For Consideration)

6.1 nafisanayidnistarenalslamiuigaeminaamulugluunaeainsiiiaiiuan (Naeayds)
6.1 To consider approving the compensation benefits directly to the Unitholders in the form of cash vouvhers
(For Approval)
O ¢ Iﬁﬁ’ﬁumuﬁumﬁawnﬁﬁmsmﬁLL@:mmﬁLmu%wﬁﬁiéﬁnﬂﬂsxmmwﬁLﬁumi

(a) To grant my/our Proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as he/ she deems appropriate in all respects.

1%

O @) Wifuneudunzasnidesaiaziuuninantlszasdaasdiingn a
(b) To grant my/our Proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:
[0 wiudas [ laduiudas ] 9paanids
Approve Disapprove Abstain
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6.2 aRasanayiBmeanniiuaznmsaassazioaMetseuil (iaaysin)
6.2 To consider approving the reduction of libilities and extension of payment period (For Approval)
O () WiFuseusunziiavsiansanuazamiundnmnlimndsznsmaiiiuaas
(a) To grant my/our Proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as he/ she deems appropriate in all respects.
1 @) Tﬁﬁ’ﬁumufiumﬂfaﬂLﬁmmmuuummmmﬂi:mﬁf*ﬂméﬁqwﬁqﬁaf:
(b) To grant my/our Proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:
O Wivdae O laiudiae ] 9naaniden
Approve Disapprove Abstain

6.3 (NaNaIsanayNRTaIauanIsIEMSWERUMNNGLIE AU (1NaaYR)
6.3 To consider approving the proposal on the lease of assets as proposed by the Lessee (For Approval)
O () WiFuneudunsldvsiansanuazasfunudiondnlivndssnsauiiviuang
(a) To grant my/our Proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as he/ she deems appropriate in all respects.
O (@) WiFuneudunzeandeasaziuuniuanuilszasiaasdiimEnnad
(b) To grant my/our Proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:
O windoa O laduiudiae [ amaaniden
Approve Disapprove Abstain

(7)MseR 7 B3asdu 9 (GR)
Agenda 7 : Other matters (if any)

O () WiFuveudunsiiavaiasanuazasumdwinlinnussnsnudiiiunas

(a) To grant my/our Proxy to consider and vote on my/our behalf as he/ she deems appropriate in all respects.
(@ sl,ﬁéfﬁumuﬁum'a@nL’&'mmﬂmuumwmwﬂizmﬁmm%wﬁwﬁqﬁ

(b) To grant my/our Proxy to vote at my/our desire as follows:

[ Wiudoa O laiudiae O sweanides
Approve Disapprove Abstain

= Va o iy A v o A o oo a o ' 9
O nsasnzuuwdasaesfustendunslunnselanlddluluaaufiszy i lumideneuduns Llitednnsasnzuwudsaiuligniies

=4 = v 1% v '
warhitedunisasazunudssediwidnlugusiiemisaamu

Voting by the Proxy on any agenda that does not coincide with my/our instructions specified on this Proxy Form shall be
invalid and not my/our votes as a Unitholder.

[N
Naal

O lunsdlndiwidflAszypnulszasdluniseani@asasaziulunnszlaly visasvy 1laidaau vize lunsdifinlseguiinag
a a4 aq A =~ A A vy o = i P & A A a v @ a
WasniseasA luGeslauenmitieanmesisyy e santensdindnsuflafeundaviseiisindewiasselsznisle
TigFunausunsanaRansanuazasdundinmildnnilsznsauiiinanmos

In case |/we have not specified my/our voting instruction in any agenda or not clearly specified or in case the meeting
considers or passes resolutions in any matters other than those specified above, including in case there is any amendment or
addition of any fact, the proxy shall have the right to consider and vote on my/our bahalf as he/she may deem appropriate in
all respects.
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o

a dlglel o ¥ o v ' dd‘?l o 1 al dlﬁ.l % o A o
Aanslanffuneudunglinszinllumedszgn Buwnsdnffuneudunslileandemaidwitssylwnldenauduns
Vinewmieuindwidnldnszinemnisznig

Any business carried out by Proxy at the said meeting, except in case that the Proxy does not vote according to my/our
intention(s) specified in the Proxy Form, shall be deemed as having been carried out by myself/ourselves in all respects.

a%a/Signed fneudung/Grantor

AdT0/Signed {Funauduny/Proxy

NNELUF/Remark

1 fnemheawunneudunzasfiosevduny Wfunesudunzienanenaadugidinsandsrguuareani@esainziuu
Tnerldaunsoutisuananunmbaawuliffuneudunsuaaauieuannisasnzuu@s il

The Unitholder appointing the Proxy must authorize only one proxy to attend and vote at the meeting and may not split the number
of investment units to several proxies for splitting votes.

2 ngoumeensuannil 20 um

Please affix duty stamp of Baht 20.
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Attachment 5
UHUNTIRIEDTUNRLTETN
Map of the meeting venue
tiestsvugadng 1 w11 Toeusudadiu unsusd ams ngamme
W7 33/1 DUUAMNITH HIWHTUWINN IAAINT NTINNY
Surasak Rooms 1, Floor 11, Eastin Grand Hotel Sathorn Bangkok
At 33/1 South Sathorn Rd., Yannawa, Sathorn, Bangkok
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